elPRO

EPRO LIMITED
HHRAH

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(EFSHBEMALZARAHE)

DI P

SIS *
SIS
SIS

.f.

»

Annual Report 5

Code B3 55%: 8086 )



| ANNUAL REPORT 2007 & #

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (THE "GEM™) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE").

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies fo which a high investment risk may
be aftached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation
to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed
on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision fo invest only affer due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities fraded on GEM may be more
susceptible fo high market volatility than securities fraded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by
the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted
newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access fo the GEM website at
www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

The fiscal year 2007 was a remarkable one for EPRO. Our business
had improved continuously irrespective of the IT sector still facing
keen competitions. Strong commitment from the management
team and customers demonstrated a solid and promising
foundation for the Group. In view of the highly volatile IT market
and severe competition both locally and globally, we sfill have
confidence that the Group is ready for upcoming challenges and
opportunities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the year, the Group continue fo devote the best efforts and
resources fo improve our delivery capability and service quality.
Having observed the global trend in software outsourcing business,
it is well aware that pricing is still one of the major decision factors
for quality IT services.

In respect to the soffware development outsourcing business, the
Group also expand our professional software festing feam in the
year fo cope with the growing demand from the market. It is also
recognised that independent software testing services will become
the future growing segment for IT outsourcing services. Over the
past few months, the Group managed to develop software testing
business for key customers from both China and overseas. Without
any hesitation, the Group will continue to explore new business
opportunities regarding the IT service oufsourcing business.

PROSPECTS

As the business contfinues to grow and improve, we are glad fo
have new investors joining the Group and we are confident that
additional resources will give a better position for the Group to
pursue software outsourcing business. In addition, newly joined
talents with various backgrounds and exposures will definitely
enlighten the Group fo become one of the key players in the
market. The Group will continuously seize any means to maintain
the cost and quality competitive momentum in the coming
future. With the setup of development centre in Hefei of Anhui
Province, one of the key cities in PRC with plenty supply of University
graduates at highly competitive cost comparing to more mature
cities in China such as Beijing and Shanghai, it further provides a
better cost advantage to the Group’s services.

SER_TTLYBFERELER - BEEMAH
REZHFDRAMA - EAEE 2 EBDTE X
Z BEHEBFBAZL MEEP2NXE B
AEEFEREMAIR AR ZEZR - fAREAP
RS mABARE  MEAMRERZHFE
- EESDRBEL  FREEEEFRERY
EHIJZ%EEX CEEEE -

e Je)

FAAEEEBEREARS N ABAERER
HERZNENRIEFARBER - CERNEIF
X¥BzanBdiz AEBRREEENARER
BABBEREZERRERZZ — -

EERMHBENAEBIE  AREEFATER
%%ﬁ#ﬂﬁ%ﬁv%%ﬁﬁ%iﬁé%ﬂZ%
c AEBRBBURMTAARBERERRE
ﬂﬂ&%ﬂ%ﬁ$?ﬂ?§%ﬁ2”* KB
AR AEEERTEREBITETFPAER
ORI T o AR 5 B S SRR A2 48 B 4 B AR
BRHINAI TS 2 TR ©

Al
BEXABTEBRERES  BESRAEEGHKE
EFIEAGKE MAKETRERIE ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEEZRRVRMEIHEBTEEREN - B 3
MBEZAEREIRAER AR BED “%%%
BRAEERREARE 2 — - AEESEERE
FEM7TE BRBRERAREZNT EDEE#
FERFNZHE - BERLBESEMRILE
RrpL BAE—FRAEEZIRE® K ERNN
KRB EAReEmITFREERTZ— &
BRERBEXAE  BEFHRIERR LESH
RERKAHBERTEARFED -



fi " Mﬁ"

|EPRO Limited S5 ® AR A 3

|
20

Chairman’s Statement FEHE

APPRECIATION 0% &t

I would like to take this opportunity fo express my gratfitude to all K AZE#HE L EE  SAEBR2EEEERKR AL
management teams and our staff memiers for their dedication ZEBINBE—FANHZENREREREK
and significant contributions in the past year. | would also like — #f e KA TRE R AEBAERE  BEF LEK
fo express my sincere appreciation to all our fellow shareholders, EHEERERE 7 8 T RIEDR TR OB ©
customers and business partners for their continuous support and

confidence in the Group.

On behalf of the Board REEEZG

Huang Shaokang BEOE

Chairman E3

Hong Kong B

13 September, 2007 T EFNA+=H
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Review of Operations 235 [EIEE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Review

For the year ended 30 June 2007, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$61,538,000 (2006: HK$86,478,000), representing approximately
28.8% decrease in revenue as compared to the last year. The
decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to certain significant
project having been completed and finalized last year, and
infense competition in the market of IT industry.

The fotal operating expenses were HK$31,030,000 for the year
(2006: HK$30,338,000), representing an increase of 2.2% as
compared to last year. The profit for the year recorded was of
approximately HK$825,000 as comparedtotheloss of approximately
HK$5,411,000 last year.

Capital Structure

The Group generally finances its operafion with infernally
generated cashflows, banking facilities and loan/funding from a
shareholder. The Group continued to exert stringent control over
freasury policies. The Company intends fo finance the Group's
future operations, capital expenditure and the capital requirement
with the existing banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2007, the interest rate of banking facilities was
charged at the range of Hong Kong prime rate ("P")+1.5%/-1%
(2006: P+1.5%/-1%).

As at 30 June 2007, the amount of short term bank and other
borrowings of the Group which were repayable within one year
was of approximately HK$1.3 million (2006: approximately HKS$7.2
million), and there is no long term bank and other borrowings of
the Group which will be repayable more than one year (2006:
Nil).

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant
Investments

The Company had made no significant investments and material
acquisitions or disposals for the year ended 30 June 2007.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations
by internally generated cash flow, banking facilities provided by
banks and loan funding from a director.

As at 30 June 2007, the Group’s consolidated shareholders’
funds, current assets and net current assets were HK$11,072,000
(2006: HK$11,383,000), HK$42,044,000 (2006: HK$43,565,000) and
HK$9,612,000 (2006: HK$9,931,000) respectively.
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In respect of the Group’s current assets of HK$42,044,000 as at 30
June 2007 (2006: HK$43,565,000), trade and bills receivable (net
of provision for doubtful debts) account for 33.6% (2006: 32.7%)
whilst pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents accounted
for about 58.6% (2006: 62.7%). As at 30 June 2007, the Group’s
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted fo
HK$24,654,000 (2006: HK$27,320.000).

As at 30 June 2007, the Group’s consolidated bank and other
borrowings repayable within one year were HK$1,283,000 (2006:
HK$7,192,000), and there was no long term bank and other
borrowings (2006: Nil).

All of the Group’s pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
bank and other borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars and United States (*US")
dollars.

As at 30 June 2007, the Group’s gearing ratio (basis: fotal liabilities
over total assets) was 75% (2006: 75%). Although the gearing ratio
is high, the Directors believe the Group has sufficient resources to
discharge its debtfs and to safisfy its commitments and working
capital requirements.

As at 30 June 2007, the Group had an aggregate composite
banking facilities from banks of approximately HK$15.8 million of
which HK$2.9 million were utilised (2006: HK$1.8 million).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong
Kong dollars, US dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Canadian
dollars and Japanese Yen.

During the year, the Group had enfered foreign exchange forward
contracts for hedging the foreign currency risk exposure on making
payment to the suppliers.

The Group requires all its operating units to use forward currency
contracts to eliminate the foreign currency exposures for currencies
other than US dollars and on any individual fransactions in excess
of HK$500,000 or equivalent, for which payment is anticipated
more than one month after the Group has entered into a firm
commitment for a sale or purchase.The forward currency contracts
must be in the same currency as the hedged item. It is the Group's
policy not to enfer info forward contracts until a firm commitment
is in place.
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The Group has no foreign currency contracts outstanding af 30
June 2007 (2006: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2007, the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of corporate guarantees for banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$28.3 million (2006: approximately HK$28.3 million). At the
balance sheet date, such facilities were utilised by the subsidiaries
to the extent of the aggregate amount of approximately HK$2.9
million (2006: approximately HK$1.8 million).

The Group had executed performance bonds and advance
payment bonds of approximately HK$0.3 milion (2006:
approximately HK$0.9 million) in respect of certain services
provided by the Group.

Charges on Assets

The banking facilities of the Group are secured by:

0) corporate guarantees in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$28.3 million executed by the Company
(2006: approximately HK$28.3 million); and

(i) pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits amounting
to approximately HK$15.4 milion (2006: approximately
HK$15.7 million).

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2007, the number of staff of the Group was 216
(2006: 162). Staff remuneration is reviewed once a year or as the
management deems appropriate. Changes in remuneration are
based on a range of factors including the Group’s performance,
the competitiveness of remuneration with the external market, and
individual employee’s performance during the year. Employees
were paid at fixed remuneratfion with discretionary bonus and
benefits of medical insurance, mandatory provident fund, share
options and necessary fraining.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies EER SR E

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of the
senior management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Shaokang (=2 7), aged 42, is the chairman of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for overall
strategy planning, management and development of the Group.
Mr. Huang has over 16 years of experience in the management
of various companies which invest mainly on the IT and electronic
industry. He has solid experiences in tfrade and business in the
People’s Republic of China, Singapore and Hong Kong. Mr. Huang
studied in the Physics Department in the University of Hui Zhou, the
People’s Republic of China from 1983 to 1986.

Mr.CHOW Siu Kwong (JEJk3), aged 37, is the chief executive officer
of the Group. He joined the Group in 2000 and is responsible for
development of Group’s software technology and methodology.
Mr. Chow has 15 years of experience in the IT industry and has
worked for key IT solution providers before joining the Group. He
graduated from Victoria University (formerly known as Victoria
University of Technology), Australia, with a Bachelor's degree and
a Master’s degree in Computer Science. He also holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration.

Mr. LIU Lin (#1#K), aged 37, is an executive director of the Group
and a director of Shanghai EPRO Software Company Limited. He
joined the Company in 2002 and had faken up various senior
positions in IT companies in the People’s Republic of China and
the United States before joining the Group. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor
of Science in Computer Science from the Beijing University of
Posts & Telecommunications and a Master of Science degree in
Computer Science from Columbia University, the United States.

Non-executive Directfor

Mr.YIP Sam Lo (¥ =), aged 60, is a non-executive director of the
Group. He joined the Group in 1992 responsible for the business
development of the Group. Mr.Yip has over 25 years of experience
in the IT industry. Prior to joining the Group, he was the regional
manager of a major U.S. computer company. Mr. Yip graduated
from the University of Texas, the US with a Bachelor’s degree in
Mathematics and from the Texas A & M University, the US with a
Master's degree in Computing Science.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LU Wei (B48), aged 50, is an associate professor at University
of Science and Technology of China. He has over 17 years of
experience in financial management and many years of practical
experience in management consulfing for UN organizations and
ofher infernational institutions. Mr. Lu was working with a Sino-
Canadian Training and Consulting Institute since 1988 to 1994.
He holds a Master's degree in engineering and a PhD degree in
the University of Science and Technology of China.

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (F75#&f&), aged 43. Mr. Fong had obfained a
bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a master's degree in Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fong has gained
more than 19 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
finance area and services the private and listed public companies
in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHANG Chung Wai (5&f#1%), aged 41. Mr. Chang graduated
from the University of Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Computer Science and Statistics. He also holds a Master
of Technology Management degree in Information Technology
Management (MTM - [TM) from the Hong Kong University of
Science & Technology. Mr. Chang has over 18 years’ experience
in information technology field, of which over 15 years’ experience
is in finance and banking sectors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Chiu Hung, Alex (FR£13), aged 41, is the company
secretary of the Company, and oversees the legal, corporate and
compliaonce matters of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration, major in Finance. He has
been working with several listed and multinational companies for
over 14 years. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, The Institute of Chartered
Secretfaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Instfitute of
Chartered Secretaries.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Yuk Fong, Bango (&*%75), aged 38, is the general
manager of the Hong Kong operation. She joined the Group
in 1998 and is responsible for managing project delivery. Ms.
Chan has 15 years of working experience in the IT fields and has
worked for different enterprises covering the business domains
of telecommunications, finance and manufacturing. She holds
a Bachelor's degree of Information System, Commerce from
University of Western Sydney, Nepean and a Master's degree in
Project Management from University of Sydney.

Mr. HE Hua Guang (faf#3%), aged 41, is the general manager of
professional services of the Group. He joined the Group in 1997
and is responsible for the development and management of the
Group'’s provision of IT professional services business. Mr. He has
over 15 years of experience in the IT field. He graduated from the
Harbin Institute of Technology, the People’s Republic of China, with
a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical & Electronic Engineering and
a Master’s degree in Engineering Management.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
30 June 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14
to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2007 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group af that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 42 to 47.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as exfracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 112. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 fo the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 22 and 23 to the
financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company fo offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set outf in note 24 fo the financial
statfements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s share premium account, in accordance with
the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium account may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares. At 30 June 2007, the Company did not
have any reserves available for distribution.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales fo the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 41% (2006: 43%) of the fotal sales for
the year and the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 17% (2006: 22%).

Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 55% (2006: 48%) of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 28% (2006: 25%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial inferest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the "Board”) of the Company during the
year and up fo the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LIU Lin
Non-executive director:

Mr.YIP Sam Lo

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LU Wei
Ms. CHEN Yen Yung (Resigned on 28 October 2006)
Ms. SHI Shu Su (Resigned on 28 October 2006)

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
Mr. CHANG Chung Wai

(Appointed on 28 October 2006)
(Appointed on 28 October 2006)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, Mr. YIP Sam Lo and Mr. LU Wei
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company hasreceived annual confirmations ofindependence
from Mr. LU Wei, Mr. FONG Fuk Wai and Mr. CHANG Chung Wai
and as at the date of this report sfill considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 10 fo 12
of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not deferminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject fo shareholders’ approval at general
meetings and monitored by the remunerafion committee on a
continuous basis. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s remuneration committee with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the result of the
Group.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions and connected transactions
disclosed in nofe 30 to the financial statements, no director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of ifs subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were enfered into or existed during the year.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART XV
OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE
(THE "SFO™)

A. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 30 June 2007, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of
the SFO); or (b) pursuant fo section of 352 of the SFO to be
entered info the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant
fo Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be nofified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange as follows:
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Aggregate long position in shares (in respect 1.
of positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)

underlying shares and in debentures of the

Company and its associated corporation(s)

a. Interest in shares (other than pursuant to

equity derivatives such as share options,
warrants to subscribe or convertible bonds)

(i) the Company

Name of Director Notes Capacity
E3ps ik a
Mr.Yip Sam Lo (a) Founder of a discrefionary frust
R-E%E ERETZEMA
Mr.Huang Shaokang (b) Inferest of a controlled corporation
BORRE REHARES

(b) Beneficial owner

BEHAA

Mr. Liu Lin (c) Inferest of a confrolled corporation

Wi REHARER

rectors EEERE

(1EF

RARE REBEEE 2 Bk (5
REBRATETABEEZAREM
) HEERORESDZHER
A

a. R zRER(BERAN
ETAHIMEBRRE - AR
BreRBEREHATBRRE
) ERRIN)

() ARF

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares issued share
inferested capital
BERELG hERs
EREREA REEDH
26,257,720 10.94%
91,633,824 38.16%
24,162,510 10.06%
9,609,489 4.00%
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Noftes:

As at 30 June 2007, 26,257,720 shares of the
Company were held by Araucarea Holdings
Limited  ("Araucarea”), a corporation  wholly
owned by TUYF Company Limited as trustee
of The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit trust of which all
of the units in issue were owned by HSBC
International Trustee Limited (*HSBC Trustee”)
in its capacity as the trustee of The TUYF Family
Trust, a discretionary family frust of which the
objects include the family members of Mr.Yip
Sam Lo.

Accordingly, Mr.Yip Sam Lo, as founder of The
TUYF Family Trust was deemed to be inferested
in 26,257,720 shares of the Company held by
Araucarea.

As at 30 June 2007, 91,633,824 shares of the
Company were held by China Dynamic
Enferprises Limited ("China Dynamic”), a
corporation wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Shaokang. Accordingly, Mr. Huang was
deemed to be inferested in 91,633,824 shares
of the Company held by China Dynamic.

Apart from the above, as at 30 June 2007,
Mr. Huang Shaokang personally owned
24,162,510 shares of the Company.

CEE

RZZEZELEFRNA=TF
H 26,257,720 K
7~ A |’ 7 BAraucarea
Holdings Limited
(TAraucareal) # &
AraucareaEZTUYF
Company Limitedt
The TUYF Unit Trustfz
TAFNEEEAZAR
Al MThe TUYF Unit
Trust’ — I8 8 7 {5 7% -
H2HBHETEMNH
HSBC International
Trustee Limited ([HSBC
Trustee|) PAThe TUYF
Family Trustz 15 5t A
5 1) % A The TUYF
Family Trustfl] & —I18 2%
BEREEL EZXmAR
BE=ZHTEZREKEK
g o
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AThe TUYF Family
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As at 30 June 2007, 9,609,489 shares of
the Company were held by Kingston View
International Limited (“Kingston View”), a
corporation wholly owned by Mr. Liu Lin,
an executive director of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Liu was deemed fo be
interested in 9,609,489 shares of the Company
held by Kingston View.

Associated corporations - EPRO  Systems
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company)

@i

RZZEZLFRA=ZT
H - Kingston View
International Limited
([Kingston View]) #
B AR R A 29,609,4890%
fefp HE—BEZBRE
HARBZHATEEY
MAELE - MEERRA/R
Kingston ViewFi# 45 2
9.609,4890% A& & A i 19
hEAER -

A B X B — EPRO
Systems Limited (4
NEZEEEZENBA
al)

Number of non-
voting deferred

Percentage of

shares interested in total issued
associated non-voting
Name of Director Note Capacity corporation deferred shares
B EEHS HERTERER
BRZERTE BETROEH
Espg i3 L EERDHE BAl
Mr.Yip Sam Lo 1 Founder of a discretionary 5,112,991 33.86%
frust
E-Br4 PREEZEIMA
Bk

As at 30 June 2007, these shares were held
by Araucarea, a corporation wholly owned
by TUYF Company Limited as frustee of The
TUYF Unit Trust, a unit trust of which all of the
units in issue were owned by HSBC Trustee in
its capacity as the trustee of The TUYF Family
Trust, a discretionary family frust of which the
objects include the family members of Mr.Yip
Sam Lo.
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Accordingly, Mr.Yip Sam Lo, as founder of The b E=ZEAEESR
TUYF Family Trust was deemed to be inferested The TUYF Family Trust
in 5,112,991 non-voting deferred shares held ZEBIMA WEREAR
by Araucarea. MAraucareaff £ & 2
5,112,991 % #& % R # ik
FERR D < S o
b. Inferests in debentures b. REHFZER
The Company or its associated corporations AN @) 3 H R B O [ A
had not issued any debentures. THREMAES -
c. Inferests in underlying shares (in respect of c. REBERMFZER(HER
position held pursuant to equity derivatives) BRATTETASE 2R
ms)
@) the Company (physically settled equity () ARABN(EDRARAE
derivatives) PTETE)
Number of Percentage of
underlying the underlying
shares in shares over
respect of the Company’s
the share issued share
Name of Director Capacity options granted capital
HEEERZ E NN [
EEpHE 51 HBEERREE BITRABOH
Mr.Yip Sam Lo Beneficial owner 1,986,367 0.82%
k4% EmEaA

Details of the above share options as
required fo be disclosed by the GEM
Listing Rules have been disclosed in
notfe 23 fo the financial statements.

(i) Associated corporation
No such inferest was reported by the
Directors.

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in respect
of positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)
underlying shares and in debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation(s)

No such short position was reported by the
Directors.
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(2) CHIEF EXECUTIVES

1. Aggregate long position in shares and (in respect
of positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)
underlying shares and in debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation(s)

No such interest was reported by the chief executive
of the Company.

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in respect
of positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)
underlying shares and in debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation(s)

No such short position was reported by the chief
executive of the Company.

In addition fo the above, as at 30 June 2007, certain
Directors are holding sharesin the Hong Kong subsidiaries
of the Company in a non-beneficial capacity, solely for
the purpose of complying with the previous requirements
of a minimum of two shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2007, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were
they faken to or deemed fo have under such provisions
of the SFO, any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) or any inferest which were required
fo be entered info the register kept by the Company
pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO or any interest which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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B. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS B.

As at 30 June 2007, the inferests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

1. Aggregate long position in shares (in respect of positions
held pursuant fo equity derivatives) underlying shares of
the Company
a. Interests in shares (other than pursuant fo equity

derivatives such as share options, warrants fo
subscribe or convertible bonds)

Name of Shareholder Capacity
RR%R 5

China Dynamic Beneficial owner

FERR

R-TTHEAA=+E  BEESSRSES
BIEBRMEARAEE 2 BRMAR
BRARR ARG RABFARG P 2 KA
mF

1. RARAEROR(EBERASTETA
FEzZRBME ) MRERNT ZIFR 4
2
a. REhzEDZ(RERATETA
(PIan i B - 7T R MR 2 FR A RE
s AR E ) E RO

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares issued share
interested Notes capital

EREEA
Ms. Yip ChiYu Interest of spouse
g5t FBEs
Araucarea Beneficial owner
EREAA
TUYF Company Limited Trustee
fEEA
HSBC Trustee Trustee
fEREA
Ms. Tai Fung Founder of a discretionary trust
BEat REETLEHA

EREEZEEREE fitsE CEAREAMM
91,633,824 M 38.16%
115,796,334 @ 48.22%
26,257,720 @) 10.94%
26,257,720 ) 10.94%
26,257,720 ) 10.94%
26,257,720 ) 10.94%
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Noftes:

The interest of China Dynamic has also been
disclosed as interest of Mr. Huang Shaokang
in the above paragraph under “Disclosure of
interests under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - Directors and Chief Executives”.

Ms. Yip Chi Yu was deemed fo be interested
in an aggregate of 115,796,334 shares of the
Company through inferest of her spouse, Mr. Huang
Shaokang.

The interest of Araucarea has also been disclosed
as interest of Mr.Yip Sam Lo in the above paragraph
under "Disclosure of inferests under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance - Directors and
Chief Executive”.

As at 30 June 2007, 26,257,720 shares of the
Company were held by Araucareqa, a corporation
wholly owned by TUYF Company Limited as frustee of
The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit frust of which all of the units
in issue were owned by HSBC Trustee in its capacity
as the trustee of The TUYF Family Trust, a discretionary
family trust of which the objects include the family
members of Ms. Tai Fung. Accordingly, Ms. Tai, as
founder of The TUYF Family Trust was deemed fo be
inferested in 26,257,720 shares of the Company held
by Araucarea.

fi o

China DynamicZ # x5 I E R
FRIMBEER RIS GEIEXV
BEEEE —EFRERHNMT
BIRBEREVREEZER -

REMETHRAEBAER
BEOBEAEZMAEDNA
115,796,334 4 2 71 15 o 1
B -

AraucareaZ #m M E R
[REFES RAEROIEXVED
B -EFREFRATEIR
BAE-MLA R -

RZZTETLtFNA=Z1TH-
Araucareali26,257,7200%
KRalRDZEXEB AN
Araucarea;gTUYF Company
LimitedAThe TUYF Unit Trust
EREASMNEEREGZ AR W
The TUYF Unit Trusts — I8 8
fZ{57% © EJYHHSBC Trustee
Fr2 & A - HSBC Trustee s
The TUYF Family TrustZ{55E
AN ERITEFE=FEETR
Araucarea” &% °
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b.

Interests in underlying shares (in respect of positions b.
held pursuant fo equity derivatives)
the Company (physically settled equity

®

derivatives)
Number of
underlying
Name of ordinary shares
Shareholder Capacity interested
BERRz
BREREE =27 HBEERYAE
Ms. Tai Fung Interest of spouse 1,986,367
HEZT fefBiEen
Note:

RAARERL 1) < # a8 (BLR B AR A DT
ETARBEGZREEMS)
()Y A2FR(EBEDXMNEAITE

TH)
Percentage of
issued share
Notes capital
BT
FisE BRABDE
()] 0.82%

Bt 5

Ms. Tai Fung was deemed to be interested
in 1,986,367 share options of the Company
through inferests of her spouse, Mr. Yip Sam
Lo.

Details of the above share opfions as
required to be disclosed by the GEM Listing
Rules have been disclosed in note 23 fo the
financial statements.

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in respect of
positions held pursuant to equity derivatives) underlying
shares of the Company

No such inferest was reported to the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2007, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the
above paragraph under “Disclosure of interests under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance - Directors and Chief
Executives”, had registered an inferest or a short position in
the shares or underlying share of the Company that was
required to be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the above paragraph under
"Disclosure of Inferest under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”, at no time
during the year were rights fo acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 year
or age, or were any rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable to
the directors of the Company to acquire such rights in any other
body corporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's fotal issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors, initial management shareholders or their
respective associates of the Company has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business of
the Group.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Details of the legal proceedings of the Group are set out in note
28 fo the financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 10 October 2007 to Friday, 12 October 2007 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the
Company’'s forthcoming annual general meeting, unregistered
holders of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and the appropriate transfer forms must be lodged
with the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 9 October 2007.

AUDITORS

CWCC acted as auditors of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2005. Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited acted as
auditors of the Company for the years ended 30 June 2006 and
2007.

Cahcet Certified Public Accountants Limited refire and a resolutfion
for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Huang ShaoKang
Chairman

Hong Kong
13 September 2007
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The board of directors (the "Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2007.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE COMPANY

The Group is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
stfandards and adherence fo the principles of corporate
governance with emphasis on tfransparency, independence
and accountability with a view to safeguarding the interests of
shareholders and enhancing corporate value.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code")
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"Stock
Exchange”) in Appendix 15 to The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enferprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(the "GEM Listing Rules”) setfs out the principles of good corporate
governance and two levels of corporate governance practices,
being (i) the code provisions which listed issuers are expected to
comply with or to give considered reasons for any deviation; and
(i) the recommended best practices, for guidance only, which
listed issuers are encouraged to comply with.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the CG Code save for (i) Code Provision A.4.1 which requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject fo re-election; and (ii) Code Provision E.1.2 which stipulates
that the Chairman of the Board should attend the annual general
meeting. Details of such deviations will be explained below.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices from
time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders
and investors and to comply with the increasingly fightened
regulatory requirements.The key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are summarised as follows:

A. THE BOARD
1. Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall management of
the Company. Its main roles are o provide leadership and
fo approve strategic policies and plans with a view to
enhance shareholder interests.

The day-tfo-day management,administration and operation
ofthe Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management. The delegated functions
and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has
fo be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
fransactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.
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Every director carries out his duty in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

The Board comprises the following 7 members:-

Executive directors:-

Mr. Huang Shaokang, Chairman of the Board

Mr. Chow Siu Kwong, Chief Executive Officer and
member of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Liu Lin

Non-executive director.-
Mr.Yip Sam Lo

Independent non-executive directors:-

Mr. Lu Wei, member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Fong Fuk Wai, Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chang Chung Wai, member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules from time to time.

There is no relationship (including financial, business,
family, or other material/relevant relationship(s)) among
the Board members.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience appropriate fo the
requirements of the business of the Company and fo the
exercising of independent judgement.

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director, being Mr. Fong Fuk Wai, possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, and accounting and related
financial management expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules.The Company considers all independent non-
executive directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules.

All directors, including non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors, have brought a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement fo the Board. Through
their parficipation in Board meetings, faking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and
serving on Board committees, the non-executive directors
make various contributions to the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by
different individuals.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Huang Shaokang,
who provides leadership for the Board and ensures ifs
effectiveness in all aspects. With the support of the senior
management,the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising af the Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Chow Siu Kwong, who
is in charge of the Company’s day-fo-day management
and operations and focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the
Board.

Appointment and re-election of directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific ferm,
subject fo re-election.

Mr. Lu Wei, Mr. Fong Fuk Wai and Mr. Chang Chung Wai (the
independent non-executive directors of the Company) are
appointed for a specific term of two years whereas Mr.Yip
Sam Lo (the non-executive director of the Company) is not
appointed for any specific ferm. However, in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, all directors of
the Company are subject fo retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting.
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In accordance with the Company’s Arficles of Association,
all directors of the Company are subject fo retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and any new
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

Pursuantto the aforesaid, Mr.Chow Siu Kwong, Mr.Yip Sam Lo
and Mr.Lu Wei shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the Company’s forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Board recommended the re-
appointment of these directors standing for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company’'s circular, sent fogether with this annual
report, contains detailed information of such directors
standing for re-election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s
Articles of Association. Though the Company has not set
up a nomination committee, the Board as a whole is
responsible forreviewing the Board composition,developing
and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment
and succession planning of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Where vacancies on the Board
exist, the Board will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and fime commitments of
the proposed candidates, the Company's needs and
ofher relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An
external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out
the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Board met once
(with the presence of Mr. Huang Shaokang, Mr. Chow Siu
Kwong, Mr. Liu Lin, Mr.Yip Sam Lo, Mr. Lu Wei and Ms. Shi Shu
Su), for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements for the business
of the Company, assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors and recommending
the re-appointment of those directors standing for re-
election atf the annual general meeting of the Company.
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Training for directors

Each newly appointed director, including Mr. Fong Fuk Wai
and Mr. Chang Chung Wai who were appointed during the
year ended 30 June 2007, receives induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/
she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Continuing briefings and professional development fo
directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

Board meetings
Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all
directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice was
generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information were sent to all directors/Board
committee members at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position
of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions.The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer and Qualified Accountant
normally aftend the regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other Board and committee meetings fo advise
on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
ofher major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circuloted to directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.
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The Company’s Arficles of Association contains provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
fransactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest. According fo current
Board practice, any material fransaction, which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board af
a duly convened Board meeting.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 30 June 2007, 9 Board meetings
were held, out of which 4 were regular meetings held
at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and
policies of the Company.

The individual aftendance records of each director at the
Board meetings during the year ended 30 June 2007 are

set out below:

Attendance/Number of

Name of Directors Meetings
Mr. Huang Shaokang 8/9
Mr. Chow Siu Kwong 9/9
Mr. Liu Lin 3/9
Mr.Yip Sam Lo 7/9
Mr. Lu Wei 3/9
Ms. Chen Yen Yung (Nofe 1) 0/2
Ms. Shi Shu Su (Nofe 1) 1/2
Mr. Fong Fuk Wai (Notfe 2) 3/6
Mr. Chang Chung Wai (Nofe 2) 4/6
Notes:

(O] Ms. Chen Yen Yung and Ms. Shi Shu Su resigned as
independent non-executive directors of the Company on
28 October 2006. Before their resignation, there were a fotal
of 2 Board meetings held during the year ended 30 June
2007.

2 Mr.Fong Fuk Wai and Mr. Chang Chung Wai were appointed
as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 28 October 2006. Subsequent fo their appointment,
there were a fotal of 6 Board meetings held during the
year ended 30 June 2007.
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Directors’ /Relevant Securities

Transactions

Employees’

The Company has adoptfed its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealings in the Company's securities
(the "Own Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of
Dealings”).

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the Own Code and the Required Standard of Dealings
throughout the year ended 30 June 2007.

The Company has also established code on no less
exacting terms than the Required Standard of Dealings (the
"Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Code for Securities
Transactions by Relevant Employees by the employees
was noted by the Company throughout the year ended
30 June 2007.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of
the Company, including: the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
infernal control and risk management systems, material
fransactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view fo ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.Each directoris normally able fo seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request fo the Board.
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The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company.These responsibilities
include the implementation of decisions of the Board, the
co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation and
management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board,
formulating and monitoring the production and operating
plans and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the
control systems.

The Board has the full support of the senior management
fo discharge its responsibilities.

The Board has established 2 committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.Both
of the Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which are posted
on the Company’s website (www.epro.com.hk) and are
available fo shareholders upon request.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established procedures for formulating
policies on remuneration and senior management of the
Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the directors
of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2007 are set
out in the financial statfements of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4
members, being three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Fong Fuk Wai (Chairman), Mr. Lu Wei
and Mr. Chang Chung Wai, and one executive director,
namely Mr. Chow Siu Kwong.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include:

To make recommendations on the establishment
of procedures for developing remuneration policy
and sfructure of the executive directors and the
senior management, such policy shall ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration;
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To make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of the executive directors and the senior
management;

. To review and approve the remuneration
packages of the executive directors and the senior
management by reference fo the performance of
the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions; and

To review and approve the compensation
arrangements for the executive directors and the
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually forreviewing
the remuneration policy and structure; reviewing and considering
the annual remuneration packages of directors and senior
management and other related matters. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for collection and administration of
the human resources data and making recommendations fo the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman/Chief Executive Officer of
the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Remuneration Committee
met once and the individual atfendance record of each member
at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out below:-

Attendance/Number
Name of Directors of Meeting
Mr. Chow Siu Kwong 1/1
Mr. Lu Wei 1/1
Ms. Chen Yen Yung (Nofe 1) 1/1
Mr. Fong Fuk Wai (Note 2) -
Mr. Chang Chung Wai (Nofe 2) -
Notes:
m Ms. Chen Yen Yung resigned as an independent non-executive

director of the Company on 28 October 2006. Before her resignation,
there was 1 Remuneration Committee meeting held during the
year ended 30 June 2007.

2 Mr. Fong Fuk Wai and Mr. Chang Chung Wai were appointed
as independent non-executive directors of the Company on 28
October 2006. Subsequent to their appointment, there was no
Remuneration Committee meeting held during the year ended 30
June 2007.
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT D. BEMREX

Directors’ responsibilities for financial reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statfements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2007.

The senior management has provided explanation and
information to the Board so as fo enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial information and
position of the Company put to the Board for approval.

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control
system of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is also responsible for maintaining an adequate
infernal control system fo safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company. During the
year under review, the Board has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the infernal control system of the
Group. Such review covered the financial, operational,
compliance and risk management aspects of the Group.
The Board will continue to review and evaluate the control
process, identify and manage potential risks and consider
measures fo address the identified risks.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Fong Fuk
Wai (Chairman), Mr.Lu Wei and Mr. Chang Chung Wai, with
one independent non-executive director (Mr.Fong Fuk Wai)
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.
None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

. To review the financial information of the Group;

To review the relationship with and the terms of
appointment of the external auditors; and

To review the Company'’s financial reporting system,
infernal control system and risk management
system.

The Audit Committee provides supervision on the internal
controls system of the Group and reported to the Board
on any material issues and makes recommendations fo
the Board.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report
for the year ended 30 June 2006, first quarterly results
and report for the three months ended 30 September
2006, interim results and report for the six months ended
31 December 2006, third quarterly results and report for
the nine months ended 31 March 2007, the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, the report from
the senior management on the Company’s infernal control
and risk management review and processes and the re-
appointment of the external auditors.

The external auditors were invited fo attend one of the
meetings fo discuss with the Audit Committee on issues
arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Audit Committee
held 4 meetings and the individual attendance records of
each member at the Audit Commiftee meetings are set
out below:-

Attendance/Number of

Name of Directors Meeting(s)
Mr. Lu Wei 3/4
Ms. Chen Yen Yung (Nofe 1) 0/1
Ms. Shi Shu Su (Nofe 1) 1/1
Mr. Fong Fuk Wai (Notfe 2) 3/3

Mr. Chang Chung Wai (Nofe 2) 1/3
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(O] Ms. Chen Yen Yung and Ms. Shi Shu Su resigned as
independent non-executive directors of the Company on
28 October 2006. Before their resignation, there was 1 Audit
Committee meeting held during the year ended 30 June
2007.

2) Mr.Fong Fuk Wai and Mr.Chang Chung Wai were appointed
as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 28 October 2006. Subsequent fo their appointment,
there were a total of 3 Audit Committee meetings held
during the year ended 30 June 2007.

External auditors and auditors’ remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report”
on pages 40 and 41 in this annual report.

The remuneration of external auditors of the Company in
respect of the audit services for the year ended 30 June
2007 amounted to HK$420,000. There is no non-audit
services provided by the Company’s external auditors for
the year ended 30 June 2007.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of fransparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and
investors fo make the best investment decision.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at “www.epro.com.hk”, where
information on the Company's financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access. Investors may write directly
fo the Company at its principal place of business af Room
1501, 15th Floor, Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-248 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong for any inquiries.
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The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the Board and
the shareholders. Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the
Chairman of alisted issuer should attend the issuer’'s annual
general meeting. Mr.Huang Shaokang, the Chairman of the
Board, was unable to attend the Company’s 2006 annual
general meeting as he had another important business
engagement. Despite his absence, he had arranged for
Mr. Chow Siu Kwong, the Chief Executive Officer, taking
the chair of the meeting and answering shareholders’
questions. Mr. Huang had also arranged the Chairman of
the Audit Commifttee and Remuneration Committee be
available fo answer questions at the said annual general
meeting. No questions were raised by the shareholders at
the meeting.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders” meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings
are confained in the Company’s Articles of Association.
Details of such rights fo demand a poll were included in
all circulars to shareholders and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings. Whenever voting by way of
a poll is required, the detailed procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained at the meeting.

Where poll voting is conducted at a shareholders’ meeting,
the poll voting results will be posted on the websites of
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (www.
hkgem.com) and the Company (www.epro.com.hk) after
the meeting.
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On behalf of the Board REEZE
HUANG Shaokang FTE
Chairman BELER
Hong Kong BB
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CACkEL
Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited

RBEHGDEHAA BRI

To the shareholders of EPRO Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of EPRO Limited
set out on pages 42 to 112, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 30 June 2007, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the frue and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining infernal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. It is our responsibility to form anindependent opinion,
based on our audit, on those financial statements and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility fowards or accept liability fo any
other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued) B ZE AR E (&)

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the audifors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order fo design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
June 2007 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chi Yuen
Practising Certificate Number PO2671

Hong Kong
13 September 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement #x

Year ended 30 June 2007 EZ=—ZZtHFRA=+HIFE

2007 2006
—EELF ZTTREF
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
Bt FHEx FAT
REVENUE PN 4,5 61,538 86,478
Cost of sales BmiHERA (31.717) (62,623)
Gross profit EA 29,821 23,855
Other income and gains HAA Rz 5 2,207 2,298
Selling and distribution costs SHE KD SHK A (1.118) (949)
Technical expenses BT A (10,207) (9.4006)
Administrative expenses T EAR (19.705) (19.983)
Finance costs A& R AN 9 (157) (798)
Share of profits and losses of DEEE AR 2 BFI RS
associates (7) (83)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBATET (&) 6 834 (5,066)
Tax BiE 10 ) (345)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEEF (&) 825 6.411)
Attributable to: AT &5 A -
Equity holders RATIRER IR
of the Company 825 6.411)
Minority interests BT R - -
825 (5.41)
DIVIDENDS BE Nil& Nil &
PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE AAMHBRERFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY EEERERN (BR)
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12
- Basic ER 0.34 centsi#l (2.67) centsi#ill

- Diluted 351 N/ATEA N/ATNER
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Consolidated Balance Sheet #HEEBEEBR
30 June 2007 —ZZEZEtH X A=1+H
2007 2006
—TELHF —ETRF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
BdaE FExT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KR 13 1,302 1,098
Inferest in associates i /N P v 15 - 37
Available-forsales investments Al EIRE 158 317
Total non-current assets IERBNEERTE 1,460 1,452
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 16 208 865
Trade and bills receivables BN E 5 R R 17 14,140 14,244
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - B Rk
other receivables H b fEGRIE 3,042 1,136
Pledged deposits EHEIRER 18 15,419 15,724
Cash and cash equivalents e MReEEER 18 9,235 11,596
Total current assets MENVE BT 42,044 43,565
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables ERE SRR RER 19 7.992 4,888 43
Other payables and accruals EAb B RIE R ERT A E 17,250 15,647
Interest-bearing bank and ST EERIT REAMERK
ofher borrowings 20 1.283 7,192
Tox payables FERBIIE 5,907 5,907
Total current liabilities FEVEIB=NI= 32,432 33,634
Net current assets RENEEFE 9,612 9,931
Total assets less current EEAERABEE
liabilities 11,072 11,383
Net assets EERE 11,072 11,383
EQUITY R
Equity atftributable to AR Rl AR R PR M 2
equity holders
of the Company
Issued capitall B EITRA 22 24,012 24,012
Reserves & (12,940) (12,629)
11,072 11,383
Minority interests DERR R - -
Total equity T AR R 11,072 11,383
HUANG Shaokang LIU Lin
BEOE Ak
Director Director
EE E3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &GREEmEBxk
Year ended 30 June 2007 EZ=—ZZ+tHFRA=+HIFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FARERRRER
Exchange
Issued Share Capital  fluctuation Accumulated Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BEARE ROEER BRfE NEZBEE 2BER &t PERRER ERE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz THET THET THT TET THT THET TEx T
At 1 July 2005 R=ZTREt+A—A 16,008 6,120 - 330 (14,545) 7.913 - 7913
Realisation of exchange REAHEHBLRRZ
reserve on deemed disposal  EEINERfEE
of a subsidiary = = = 22 (22) = = =
Exchange realignment SMERE - - - (320) - (320) - (320)
Total income and expense ERRMERTEAL
for the year recognised WARF% &%
directly in equity . = 5 (299) @) (320) = (320)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (5411) (5411) - (5411)
Tofal income and expenses  FE WA RF %M
for the year . = . (%) (5.433) (5.731) . (6.731)
Issue of shares BHIRH 22 8,004 2401 - - - 10,405 - 10,405
Share issue expenses BIRHER - (1,204) - - - (1,204) - (1,204)
44
8,004 1197 - (298) (5.433) 3,470 - 3,470
At 30 June 2006 WZEE ERA=1H 24,012 1317 - 32 (19.978) 11,383 - 11,383
At 1 July 2006 RZZE~ E+A—A 24,012 7317 - 32 (19.978) 11,383 - 11,383
Exchange realignment SMERE - - - (1136) - (1136) - (1.136)
Total income and expense ERREGTRERL
for the year recognised WARF 25
directly in equity 5 = 5 (1,136) 5 (1,136) . (1.136)
Profit for the year FEET - - - - 825 825 - 825
Totol income and expenses  FEZMARFIX £
for the year 5 = 5 (1,136) 825 @1) = @)
At 30 June 2007 R-EEtERA=1H 24,012 7,317 - (1.104) (19.153) 11,072 - 11,072
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &&8HEREHE

Year ended 30 June 2007 H#Z =T tHF X B=THILEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profits and losses of
associates
Interest income
Gain on deemed disposal of
a subsidiary
Depreciation
Impairment of available-for-sales
investments
Gain on disposal of an associate
Write off of property, plant and
equipment
Write back of impairment of
frade and bills receivables

Operating loss before
working capital changes
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and
bills receivables
(Increase)/decrease in
prepayments, deposits and
ofher receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade
and bills payables
Increase/(decrease) in other
payables and accruals

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Hong Kong profits tax refunded

Overseas taxes paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities

Notes
FfaE

REEBCHER

BEiRTEA (ER)
SRR
BEKA 9
DIRBERTE L
BRI R R 1R
A SHA 5
HESHENB AT
Wz 5
e 6
AHHERERE

H &SR R E 2 ZF 5
MEHE - BB MR

Rrm A AR
RIBRE 6

Rt EESE BRI
FEHRD
FEWE SRR N R
D
ERFOR R M A
FEMRRIR (380n) R

RN EZRR RS
1, CRd)

Hip AR BT RE
1#h, CRd)

REZBPTS () Be

REBEEEH
EREIMIEIR 10

REXBRERA
(i) FE

2007 2006
—EEtLE —TTAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
834 (5.066)
157 798
7 83
(703) @62)
- (840)
540 562
159 -
- (313)
91 15
(1,196) (692)
am (5915)
657 6,636
1,300 2,031
(1.906) 3,327
3,104 (6.856)
1,603 (4,695)
4,647 (5.472)
- 281
® (345)
4,638 (5.536)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #HR&EBEREWRRE
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from deemed disposal of
an associate

Decrease/(increase) in pledged
deposits

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Advances of bank borrowings

(Repayment)/advances of
other borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate

changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Notes

FisE
BEEDREN

EHFE
BEYX BENREER

BHERFERORD (&)

REFDZREMA ()
R

RMETHZHER
BT PTISROR
BIRNER 24
BHIRITER
(fE8) B HMER

EIES)

BETH<RS ORd)
M

ReRELEEER (BD)
EnFEE

FUHREFREFEIRA

SNER B2

FRESRASEEAR

RERRESEEBBALBRIN

Re MiRTTERF

Wik 2 [RET2IHR A
R={AR 22 H#EH
TR

2007 2006
—BELF SEEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
703 462

797) (299)

30 875

305 (3.856)

241 (2.818)

- 10,405

- (1,204)

91 23
(6.000) 2,000

(157) (798)
(6.066) 10,426
(1.187) 2,072
11,596 9,880

(1,174) (356)
9,235 11,596
8,934 6,615
301 4,981
9,235 11,596
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Balance Sheet BEA/GE
30 June 2007 —ZZEZEtH X A=1+H
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF

Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000

B aE FiExT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries N SIENCI A T 14 - =
Total non-current assets SEMENEERER - =
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUSFT /B A mIFkIE 14 - -
Prepayments, deposits and BNFIE - ZE Rk

other receivables Hfth fE U R IE 218 96
Pledged deposits [mEEECEN 18 12,256 11,994
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEBEER 18 165 59
Total current assets RENE EAERE 12,639 12,149
47
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Due fo a subsidiary FES — B A RIFIE 14 748 538
Other payables and accruals E bR IE R ERT A E 487 515
Bank overdrafts BITEX 45 -
Total current liabilities mENE B 1,280 1,053
Net current assets REBEETE 11,359 11,096
Total assets less current EEHSER
liabilities REBEE 11,359 11,096
Net assets EEFHE 11,359 11,096
EQUITY s
Issued capitall B EBITARAR 22 24,012 24,012
Reserves & 24 (12,653) (12,916)
Total equity AR 11,359 11,096
HUANG Shaokang LIU Lin
BEORE AR
Director Director
Ea 2
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 March
2000 under the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”)
on 2 August 2000.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Room 1501, 15/F, Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-248
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the provision
of professional information tfechnology ('IT*) contract
services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statfements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Instfitute of Certfified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial

instruments, which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 30 June 2007. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant infercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

1.

2.1

DNAER
ARBAR-—ZZZF=FA+HABEBRER=
BHERRAA(CZEZEZFEAN)ERERH
SEMKRERLBRAR - ARFK
DR-FETF\A_BEBEHERS
FrER AR (T3P ) BIZAR ([ 8124k 1)
£ e

7S R &) 7% it 3% =5 52 iz A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

ARRATELEMBETERFEED
244-2485F R X RE 1511501 = -

AEBRAFREZEB Y RIEHEEEER
M ((ERR )& KR -

mEBEERE

MIBHERDBBEER SR ERMZE
BUBHREEA(TEEMEHREER D)
(TmBEREetERN(FEEEL )
k#E) BELTERMNZERAIMR
R PBMRIDBBERDERR - MM
BIATRRATEAR - BREBERIEN
AP BBRRABEEREFNNEE  FTRAET
ATIEAEM »

B OTERE

SR BBEREBEARRAREFAREE
20076 A30R IFFEHBMBHRE - F2
AMEERREBEZAREH KB
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first fime for the current year's financial
statements. The adoptfion of these new and revised
standards and inferpretation has had no material effect
on these financial statements.

HKAS 21 Amendment Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

HKAS 27 Amendment Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Amendments as a
consequence of the Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2005

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Confracts

Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast
Infragroup Transactions

HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option

HKFRS-Int 4 Detfermining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

HKFRS-nt 5 Right fo Inferests Arising from

Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilifation Funds

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 Liabilities Arising from Participating in a
Specific Market - Waste Electrical and

Electronic Equipment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS29 Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

\\
pe]

Js

2

2.2 4N RICE 2 E B
16 35 % 2 By S
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The principal changes in accounting policies are as

follows:

(@)

(b)

©

HKAS 21 Amendment
*Net Investment in a Foreign Operation”

Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21 Amendment
regarding a net investment in a foreign operation,
all exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Group’s net investment
in a foreign operation are recognised in a separate
component of equity in the consolidated financial
statements irrespective of the currency in which
the monetary item is denominated. This change
has had no material impact on these financial
statements as af 30 June 2007.

HKAS 27 Amendment

“Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements: Amendments
as a Consequence of the Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2005

The adoption of the amendment to HKAS 27 has
resulted in a change in accounting policy relating
to the definition of a subsidiary for the purpose
of the consolidated financial statements and this
change has had no impact on these financial
statements as af 30 June 2007.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS4 Amendment
“Financial Guarantee Contracts”

In the current year, the Group has adopted the
amendments to HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement -  Financial
Guarantee Contracts” which is effective for annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2006.

A financial guarantee contract is defined by
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” as a contfract that requires the issuer
fo make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for aloss it incurs because a specified debtor fails fo
make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

SHBEHTERHNT
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

©

@

HKAS 39 and HKFRS4 Amendment
“Financial Guarantee Contracts”
(Continued)

The Company acts as the issuer of
financial guaranfee contracts

Prior to 1 July 2006, financial guarantee contracts
were not accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39
and those contracts were disclosed as contingent
liabilities. A provision for financial guarantee was
only recognised when it was probable that an
outflow of resources would be required to seftle
the financial guarantee obligation and the amount
can be estimated reliably.

Uponthe adoption of these amendments,afinancial
guarantee confract issued by the Company and
not designated as af fair value through profit or loss
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable fo the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Company measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 *Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

In connection with a financial guarantee granted
fo certain banks over the repayment under frust
receipt loans and certain factoring by subsidiaries,
this change in accounting policy has had no
material effect on the Group’s and Company’s
amounts reported for the current and prior
accounting periods.

HKAS 39 Amendment
“Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions”

The Group has adopted this amendment as of
1 July 2006, which has revised HKAS 39 to permit
the foreign currency risk of a highly probable
infragroup forecast fransaction fo qualify as a
hedged item in a cash flow hedged, provided that
the transaction is denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity enfering
info that transaction and that the foreign currency
risk will affect the consolidated income statement.
As the Group currently has no such transactions,
the amendment has had no material impact on
these financial statements.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED 2.2 HHFT REBF 2 ERBY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BHRELZNNZE 2
STANDARDS (Continued)

(e) HKAS 39 Amendment “The Fair Value (e) BB EREION(K
Option” BT A EEE]
This amendment has changed the definition of a IETREREAZRABRREER
financial instrument classified as fair value through B H) B 75 & 22 TE 2 30 PR I ER A LA
profit or loss and has restricted the use of the option N EBBRERTEEMIEEY
to designate any financial asset or any financial BEENBENEEE - XEEBH
liability o be measured at fair value through the ETBERAIEERE - AbZER
income statement. The Group had not previously HAP KRR EE -
used this option, and hence the amendment has
had no effect on the financial statements.

()  HK(FRS)-Int 4 “Determining whether an () BBMBHREEN
Arrangement contains a Lease” - RRBRATEERZH

=REsHE]

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 AEBEKER_ZEZEFLA—H
July 2006, which provides guidance in determining RALZRE  hRBUETLTHER
whether arrangements contain  a lease fo GEREHEREESIHESF KA
which lease accounting must be applied. This A - LR EBU AR ERRBES
interpretation has had no material impact on these AEE -
financial statements.

(9) HK(FRS)-Int 5 "Right to Interests Arising (9) BEENBHREER
from Decommissioning, Restoration —REESTE[BRKRE
and Environmental Rehabilitation E - ERERREBEER
Funds” SEEZEF ]
The Group has adopted this interpretation as of AEBBRKER ST FLH—H
1 July 2006, which provides guidance in the Right to A RE 2R NAERE PR
Interests Arising fromm Decommissioning, Restoration MEE - BERMRBEEESHE
and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds must be K REFIR LIS S| o 2B AR
applied. This inferpretation has had no material FEIREPEEALLE o
impact on these financial statements.

(h) HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 “Liabilities Arising from (h) EB(EIREBEEES)
Participating in a Specific Market —REF66FE[E2HEY
- Waste Electrical and Electronic EmE2=EE-BEESE H
Equipment” REFFZE]
The Group has adopted this interpretation as of AREBERKN T E+H—H
1 July 2006, which provides guidance in Liabilities HALRE . kBREHYEER
Arising from Participating in a Specific Market - ZHEETMBEIETF-—EBEET IR
Wasste Electrical and Electronic Equipment must T LIRS o R A
be applied.This interpretation has had no material BRI EEASE o

impact on these financial statements.
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

®

@

(k)

HK(IFRIC) -Int 7 “Applying the
Restatement Approach under
HKAS29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies”

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of
1 July 2006, which provides guidance in Applying
the Restatement Approach under HKAS29 Financiall
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies must be
applied. This interpretation has had no material
impact on these financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) -Int 8 "Scope of HKFRS 2"

The Group has adopted this interprefation as of
1 July 2006, which provides guidance in the scope
of HKFRS 2 must be applied. This inferprefation
has had no material impact on these financial
statements.

HK(IFRIC) -Int 9 "Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives”

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of
1 July 2006, which provides guidancein Reassessment
of Embedded Derivatives must be applied. This
interpretation has had no material impact on these
financial statements.

)

()
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures'

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures'
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangement®

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
November 2006

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March
2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon inifial
application.So far, it has concluded that while the adoption
of the HKAS 1 Amendment and HKFRS 7 may result in new
or amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely o have a significant impact on the Group's results
of operations and financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies are under the Company controls, directly or
indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from ifs activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable.The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which
the Group has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in
a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associafes is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The Group’s inferests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates, which was not previously eliminated or
recognised in the consolidated reserves, is included as
part of the Group'’s interests in associates. Adjustments are
made to bring info line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company'’s interests in associates are
freated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generatfing unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting dafe as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may not no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial
assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, however not fo an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such impairment loss is credited to the income statement
in the period in which it arises.
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2.4  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties

A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
infermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (i) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
©) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

© the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d); or

® the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condifion and
location for its infended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset or as a replacement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
foits residual value over its estimated useful life.The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold Improvements 20% to 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

Computer equipment and software 18% to 33 1/3%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects fo develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the fechnical feasibility of completfing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its infention to complete and its ability fo use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability fo measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
dose not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
commencing from the date when the products are put info
commercial production.

Leases

Lease where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited tfo the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investment, and available-for-
sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured aft fair value, plus,
in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable fransaction costs. The Group
considers whether a confract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party fo it.
The embedded derivatives are separated from the host
contract which is not measured at fair value through
profit or loss when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of embedded derivatives are not
closely related to those of the host confract. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assetfs affer
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assetfs that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

2.4 FESHBEBE»)

MERFEERAE(2)

i FE 57 35 PR Th 1R PR A (B RUE DR B IS 18
SRR - WABEARRRBMERZBEDRR
(MEMEMMREEEEZ BE)H#H -

HE

EERERE 2 KB @8 K% @R R
HAZHEESSKEEHE - HAEE R
BA AEEREEKEHELHE2EET
BERERDEERBEEEHERK Z
Herm  WRBELHHBEAERES AR
KA MAKEREABA > RELEHE
N zESABEREZREORRBEERR
R -

REREMBUBKEE

BERENEIORBBEAZEREET
BEMSBERRATEFABGZEHME
E - BERRERHR  FEBHRERAH
HESREE - SRHEEREVIHERE
ERAFEM(RIL IR R FEFT AER
ZRE)EREBEXHKAGTE - A5 H
BEBRKRARAENTRERZANRE R
SMAITETA - B MBATRRAITE
T B 7 808 51 K =L e B30 FE 42 A P E &
ABHEZETANELEZDBE - BIERA
MTETASRTSNDMIER - REEE
BERERAECHEREEZD R L&
BERBEEZBERAT  EAEHEBEHTGE

SR -

E—REBZHMBEEMRRZ S A (A
AEBEAGBEZEEZAS) TR
R —REBERERE-RTISRERBEDH

E-—EHMEARNEEZHMBEERS °

59



U

O

|E PR O

mited

Notes to Financial Statements Bt #%3 &R M

Year ended 30 June 2007 EZ=—ZZ+tHFRA=+HIFE

60

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for frading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
frading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near terms. Gains or losses on investment held for frading
or these financial assets are recognised in the income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Amortised cost is calculated taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
fransaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the loans and receivables
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-fo-
maturity when the Group has the positive infention and
ability fo hold to maturity. Investments infended to be held for
an undefined period are not included in this classification.
Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Amortised cost is computed as the
amount initially recognised minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interests method of any difference between the
initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. This
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an infegral
part of the effective interest rafe, fransaction costs and
all other premiums and discounts. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the investments
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale  financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that
are designated as available for sale or are not classified in
any of the other three categories. After initial recognition,
available-forsale financial assets are measured at fair
value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised
or until the investment is determined fo be impaired, at
which fime the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is included in the income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimate is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organized financial market is defermined by reference
fo quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there is
no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
fechniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market tfransactions; reference fo the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing
models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses af each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The amount
of the impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it
is defermined that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
that group is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues fo be recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decrease and the decrease can be related objectively
fo an event occurring affer the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all
of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured
or on a derivative asset that is linked fo and must be seftled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-forsale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

- the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

- the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assef,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither fransferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor fransferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
fo the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that fakes the form of a
guarantee over the fransferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written
and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the
fransferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except
in the case of a written put option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured
at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is limited fo the lower of the fair value of the
fransferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(including interest-bearing loans and other
borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company and
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated
at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for tfrading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
income statement.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis;
(i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains
an embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee confracts in the scope of HKAS
39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contfract is recognised initially at its fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly affributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract,
except when such contract is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 "Revenue”.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is freated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward currency contracts fo hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative confract is enfered info and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
taken directly to the income statement for the year.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging (Continued)

The fair value of forward currency confracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts
with similar maturity profiles.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relatfionship fo
which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the
risk management objective and its strategy for undertaking
the hedge. The documentation includes identification of
the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction,
the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will
assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting
the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value
or cash flows affributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges
are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an
ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting
are accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is
recognised in the income statement.The change in the fair
value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is
recorded as a part of the carrying amount of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the income statement.

For fair value hedges relating fo items carried at amortised
cost, the adjustment fo carrying value is amortised through
the income statement over the remaining term to maturity.
Any adjustment fo the carrying amount of a hedged
financial instrument for which the effective interest method
is used is amortised fo the income statement.

Amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists
and shall begin no later than when the hedged item ceases
fo be adjusted for changes in its fair value atftributable to
the risk being hedged. If the hedged item is derecognised,
the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in
the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated
as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change
in the fair value of the firm commitment aftributable to
the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with
a corresponding gain or loss recognised in the income
statement. The changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument are also recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories represent trading merchandise and direct
costs incurred for IT contract work in progress and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realizable
value is based on estimated selling prices less estimated
costs fo be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible info known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an infegral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
ferm deposits, which are noft restricted as fo use.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in
advance. Revenue is recognised and deferred revenue is
released to the income statement when the corresponding
services are rendered.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to seftle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (Continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet datfe of the future expenditures expected
fo be required to seftle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
cerfain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
fax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if
it relates fo items that are recognised in the same or a
different period directly in equity.

Current fax assefs and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured af the amount expected fo be
recovered from or paid fo the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

= where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the fime
of the tfransaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
femporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Confinued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused fax credits
and unused fax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except;

- where the deferred tax asset relating fo the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
fransaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
fo the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet dafe and
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted af the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relafe fo the same taxable entity and the same taxatfion
authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue Recognition
Contract

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises
the agreed contfract amount and appropriate amounts
from variation orders, claims and incentive payments
arising from professional [T contract services. Contract
costfs incurred comprise equipment and material costs,
subcontracting costs, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference fo the proportion of work completed to date to
the estimated total work of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred fo date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is freated as an amount due from contract
customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
fo date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is freated as an amount due fo confract
customers.

Inferest income

Inferest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
fo the principal outstanding and atf the intferests rate
applicable.

Management fee

Management fee income is accrued, when the services
are rendered.

Employee benefits
Paid leave carries forward

Employee entitlements o annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue fo employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up fo the balance sheet date.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Paid leave carries forward (Continued)

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service fo the Group in order to
be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance in the event of the termination
of their employment. The Group is liable fo make such
a fermination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future
long service payments expected to be made.The provision
is based on the best estimate of the probable future
payments which have been earned by the employees from
their service to the Group to the balance sheet date.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits schemes (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible fo
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assetfs of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required fo contribufe a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards fo eligible
participants who contribute fo the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
fransactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other
than conditions linked fo the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-seftled tfransactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service condifions
are fulfilled, ending on the dafe on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the "vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group'’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification, which increases the fotal fair value
of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial fo the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where an equity-seftled award is cancelled, it is freated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the datfe that it is granfed, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilufive effect of oufstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilufion in the computation of earnings
per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 in respect of equity-seftled awards and has applied HKFRS
2 only fo equity-settled awards granted after 26 July 2000
that had not vested on 1 July 2005 and to those granted
on or affer T July 2005.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
are initially recorded using the functional currency rates
ruling at the date of the fransactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet datfe. All differences are taken to the income
statfement. Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are tfranslated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
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2.4  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies ofther than the Hong Kong dollars. As af
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company af the exchange rates ruling af the balance
sheet dafe and, their income statements are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
included in a separate component of the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relafing
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling af the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgment,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables

The policy for impairment allowances on trade and bills
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability fo
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

2.4 FESHBEBE»)

Shes )
ETHEIMBARZEERRIEEEE
BeoMEBEER  ZEEBZEEREER
REEHZEXBME/SRARAZ 25 E
¥ mEZHEBERERFAMEFHESX
BERETL EEZEREZRTAEBH
MONER B o HEBINERBE - HZ
BHNERESEFFAERRATER ZE
ERET BN RER

HEGARSRERMNE - BINIBARZ
RERBERRECREEAZEXBRERE
T BINIBRARFARNKEELEZR S
MEBRFERNZINEFHEZHESET -

TESFHE R A

-

EERAASESARENBRES  BEE
LERATHE CFREEERI) - G
HEHER B RRERNSIEENREE

=47
VR o

BWEZERRRREREER

7 55 (8] FE W2 P 00RR 18 28 485 TR 3R DA AT MR 130 1
APl BRE DT R E IR E B AR o 5T
HRERERR RRERENTFEET
REHE  BEEPZAREERBER
R L FE#k o MAREE S MBMRH B
=Ae o BISSENREE N - AIZAIREERRINE
f e
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimated fair value of financial assets

The estimation of fair value of financial assets required the
Group fo estimate the future market value expected fo
be received from the disposal of the financial assefs and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are contained in note 21 to the financial
statements.

3.

FTEGFHAERMEE 2

MBEEENMGITIAEE
AUBBEEAFELT N AREA
B i B A E 2 A MR OR PR MR I TR
A LR EZRREUEHEREZ
A e

EEBIBEE

BREVEEEAME RS AN AERE
R RN A A e B A B R A A
SHREHERNAT c TEZEEEHEHE
KEFREHRIREE R ZRERAEREA
B R 2R FERR TE 28 ) B R R B 7 =t 8 SRS —
FIHERR o #E — F R IBE DI B AR 0 75 35 B
21 °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors consider that the Group’s primary segment
reporting basis is by business segment. During the current
and the prior year, the Group’s operations related solely
fo the provision of professional IT contract services and
accordingly, no further business segment information is
presented.

Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue, certain asset

4. DEEH

%% B AEENEBEIMERERD

Z%f’z/\,\

EREE - RAFEREFE  ~&H
HEREABRAHNREE

B AU YEEIE-—FZXBENEE

¥ o

b & 2 &P

TRENAREBRWE S #B 2 WA -

a1

and capital expenditure information for the Group’s BERBARAZZEHR °
geographical segments.
Group
REE
People’s Republic
of China except
Hong Kong Hong Kong (*PRC") Singapore Japan Consolidated
HEARLAE
&% BERS ([1E]) i BA &8
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
CERtE  CERRE CERELF ZIENF CERGF IR CERtE CRTE CEBLF CERF
HKY'000  HKS000  HKY000  HKS000  HK$'000 ~ HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000
T TEL TR TEL T TEL TR TER TEn TEL
Segment revenue:  HEMA ¢
Salesfoextemal  EEHEEZ
cusfomers HER 17,584 32,239 38,073 48490 3,456 4,001 2,425 1,748 61,538 86,478
Segment assefs  AEAE 23,303 31,189 17,312 12,031 2,312 1,797 517 - 43,504 45017
Capital expenditure AR 38 18 745 20 14 3 - - 197 299
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. U A » Hitgr A R Uk

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WA EBAREE z £ )IEMREEZR
net invoiced value of IT professional services. AR R 2 BERFE -
An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and REBE WA - Efb A RIK =D a0
gains is as follows: T:
Group
AEH
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Revenue: WA -
Professional IT contfract services BEENRHE KRS 61,538 86,478
Other income and gains: H AW A Rz
Interest income M EBHA 703 462
Gain on deemed disposal of WAR B E —H
78 a subsidiary S)ENCTl G - 840
Gain on disposal of an associate & —fEt & A A 2 Wz - 313
Exchange gain, net SNE W a5 994 411
Others HAfb 510 272
2,207 2,298

Revenue, other income and gains Yz ~ EAbUA R ZF) 63,745 88,776
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Depreciation

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases in respect of
land and buildings

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment of other receivables

Impairment of available-for-sale
investment

Auditors’ remuneration

Staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration
in note 7):
Wages and salaries
Net pension scheme

contributions*

Exchange gains, net

Write back of impairment of Ol fE U E 5 R 3K
trade and bills receivables REBRE
* At 30 June 2007, the Group did not have forfeited

contributions available fo reduce its confributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2006: approximately

HK$10,000.)

e
BELHRETZ
KEMH 2 RIK
AR

IEME - BB &
i EE

H At FE WS IR R R E
AHHERERE

ZEREN BN &
BTRA
(BIEMIEE7
Ptz EEME)
TERF®
RS HFUFR

SNENER - FER

BRBATRA, (BE)

ARBEZBEAAMN(BR)IIROR,/
(GEA) FEIRIREEHE

Group
EE
2007 2006
—EELF —ETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
540 562
2,266 1,973
91 15
- 713
159 -
420 380
9,398 9,892
1,792 1,401
11,190 11,293
(994) “417)
(1.196) (692)
* RZZEZLFRA=1+H FEBEWER

BRRWEBRKREFEZHR(ZZTER
4 : HK$10,000) °
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. ES#ME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant fo RIEE X AT AIZERE 5 MR R & A R
the GEM Listing Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong BIEIOTEETHBEZAFEESHMES W
Companies Ordinance is as follows: T
Group
REE
2007 2006
—ETLHF —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Fees e 60 60
Other emoluments: B
Salaries, allowances and HEAH S - HaER Kk
benefits in kind EYFz= 1,742 1,215
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIfER 12 12
80 1,754 1,227

1.814 1,287
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 7.

(a) Executive directors

(b)

2007 e e
Mr. HUANG Shaokang BOREE
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong B
Mr. LIU Lin Vit
2006 ZZTRE
Mr. HUANG Shaokang BORSEE
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong NS it
Mr. LIU Lin ML E
Mr. ZENG Weiren LAARE
Mr. XIN Yi FREE
Noftes:

(a) appointed on 12 August 2005

(b) resigned on 28 October 2005

Non-executive director

EEME
(o) BITES
Group
E3
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e
H )2 R BiRke
He EkEUFNE ST &I B
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BT TET FAT FTEL
- 400 - 400
- 863 12 875
- 479 - 479
- 1,742 12 1,754
(a) - 836 12 848
- 379 - 379
(b) - - - -
(b) - - - -
- 1,215 12 1,227
BT

(@) RZZEZERFNAT=ZREHE

(b) RZTETZNE+TA=-FTN\BE

Mr.YIP Sam Lo E=FLE

£

(b) FHATEE

Group

rEE
2007
—EELHF
HK$'000
FET

2006
ZETRF
HK$'000
FHIT
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
(c) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid fo independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

Ms. CHEN Yen Yung BRIESEZ L
Mr. LU Wei BlExAE
Ms. SHI Shu Su et gk 22+
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai FEEEE
Mr. CHANG Chung Wai SRIP &
Notes:

(a) resigned on 28 October 2006

() appointed on 28 October 2006

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2006: Nil).

No further emoluments were paid by the Group to the
executive and non-executive directors either as an
inducement upon joining or fo join the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

During the year, there were no share options granted to the
directors in respect of their services to the Group.

7. EEME€
(c) BYFHTES
BUFEATESZAFTFEHS W
T
Group
REH
2007 2006
—EZLF ZETRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$’'000
fizE FET FAT
(a) 5 20
18 20
(@ 5 20
(b) 16 -
(b) 16 -
60 60
B 5 -

(@ R-FEAE+A-+N\ARH

£

(b) RZZEEREF+TA=ZTNBZE

£

FRILEE(TEMENBLIERTES

ZEE(ZFTRE &) -

AEEREAUERTESNIIFNTES
XATERE B & - SAYERE ANA SR I
AR EEES 7 SRR F AR B (E -

FA-MEREERRERBNAEEM

15T AR -
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included

1 (2006: 1) director, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining 4 (2006: 4) non-director, highest paid employees

are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
benefit in kind
Pension scheme contributions

Fro o AR R
BEYHas
BRIRSFFEIHR

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil fo HK$1,000,000

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on bank loans
and overdrafts wholly repayable
within five years

Inferest expenses on other loans
wholly repayable within five years

Total finance costs

Z%1,000,000/%8 7T

ARAFABEEER ZRITER
F3E BRI

ANTFNBEER 2 H &R
FEFRX

BB AR

TIEREHET
FARERSHFEERE —R(ZZTZX
F:—R)EF FEZHMEeFEIN X
a7 - EFRBTHEZ(ZTZTRF: ME)
FEEEoTFNEE 2MEeFBUOT ¢

Group

rEE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
3,154 3.234
126 131
3,280 3.365

MWeENFTHNEENZRSHIFEERE
ZHBEER T :

Number of employees

EEAH

2007 2006
= ZTTNF
4 4

Group

#EE
2007 2006
—EEF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
19 283
138 1%
157 798
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10.

TAX

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2006: Nil).

Taxes on profits in respect of Group companies operating
elsewhere have been calculated atthe rates of fax prevailing
in the respective tax countries/jurisdictions in which they
operate based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

For the year ended 30 June 2006, a PRC subsidiary of
the Group was eligible for the exemption from corporate
income tax ("CIT") for the two years starting from the first
year in which assessable profits were generated, and a 50%
exemption from CIT for the following three years expiring
on 31 December 2006.

Group: NEEH
Current —charge for the year: REFTH -
PRC R

Share of tax attributable to: FEMELA TN AR Z A
An associate —EEE A A
Total tax charge for the year FAFIE MR

10. IR

AN &2 @ A AN 6 3 4 A BB B A (T A e AR
MEF AL EELESNESHEE
(ZEZTRF  E) -

REE N AR QS 2 RRZ 8B
B BEREMERZEREN  2EBERE
Bl BE BRI EEE R ZBTHEG

st
= o

RZZBZRENA=TH AEEZ—H
BB B A ) AT X fE 84S e SR B & A 4R
ERG EMFEREBNEEMEH
([EEMEH]  URER=EFEER
ME0% EE—FETRFE+-_HA=1+—H
ik

Group
G L
2007 2006
. et 2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
9 345
9 345
9 345
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10. TAX (Continued) 10. HIE 2

11.

A reconciliation of the fax expense applicable fo profit/
(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for the countries
in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled
fo the tfax expenses at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates for the year is as
follows:

Profit/(loss) before tax BEBAIZEF, S (ER)
Tax at the domestic fax rates ZEARNEEBRRZ
applicable fo losses in the BB 2 B A

countries concerned FTE 2 HIE
Income not subject to tax RRUA

Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 R

Tax losses utilised from previous FFAAEHREZ
periods MIEEE

Unrecognised deferred tax assets — REERIELEFRIBE E

Tax charge at the Group's BRAEEBHRTE%
effective tax rafe of 1% (ZZFZTRE: (%) )
(2006: (7%)) ATEZHEL Y

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s net profit/(loss) from ordinary activities
aftributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year includes a profit of HK$263,000 (2006: loss of
HK$14,239,000) which has been dealt with in the financiall
statements of the Company (note 24(b)).

11.

BARBRBAEF,(BE)RADF R
HWBARMEMBER 2 EEMERGTHEZ
HIERXEENERBRGEE 2 AR
T~

Group
AEH
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
834 (5.066)
77 (368)
(371) (222)
138 1,002
(5637) (1,353)
702 1,286
9 345

7 F S I S B
iR 2 B ()

alj

RERNRRE 2B EREK T RIEZRFRIE
ERBEL 2 BRI F5R263,0008 T (=
TEXE : 51814,239,0008 7T) (M5
24(b))
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12,

PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculations of basic profit/ (loss) per share are based
on:

EEE e EED
(R 2R, (&5i8)

Profit/ (loss) atfributable to PA/N
ordinary equity holders
of the Company

Shares eh)

Weighted average number of ﬁﬁt/{éi+§ﬁ§%$”ﬂ/
ordinary shares in issue during (E18) 28
the year, as adjusted, used in i?ﬂaé‘éf‘r%ﬁﬂx
the basic profit/(loss) per Ik

share calculation

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
used in the basic loss per share calculation for the year
ended 30 June 2006 is determined by adjusting the effect
of the fen-sfo-one share consolidation exercise (note 22)
and the additional 80,400,000 new ordinary shares issued
pursuant fo the one-for-two rights issue (note 22) completed
during the year ended 30 June 2006.

No diluted profit/(loss) per share has been disclosed as
the share options outstanding during the year had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic profit/(loss) per share during
the year (2006: Nil).

12.

A

Eaisa A
M, (E518)

ﬁﬂ%

AEE
BR

oS
neal

Z
i

SREAREM, (BER)RATEEFE

2007 2006
—BBLE —EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
825 (5,411)

Numbers of shares

ROHE
2007 2006
—sTLE e
240,120,000 202,365,856

ARAEEBRERAERN (FHE)BEZE
ZETEARFANAZTRHIEFERBTRG
FEMMEFHE  DHRBETREHE
— R E G ITEN (M 7E22) I AR 48 70 &

EZETRFAAZTRLESEHRERE
B AR B — R 1T B AR A if BR AN B AT
80,400,0000% #7 & 8 AR (Fff 57£22) 2 &
MEE °

RENMATEBREHSRERET,/
(BR)BRRESZE I EREE

AEREFTEF(BE) (ZTTRF
') -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 9% - BE K&

Group
&M@
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures equipment Motor
improvements  and equipment and software vehicles Total
B ERRE
HELE RERRE R&t RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEL TERL TEx TER
30 June 2007 “EEtE
AA=1H
At 1 July 2006: “ITNF
tA-H:
Cost PAE 800 1,775 7,290 160 10,025
Accumulated depreciation ZiE
and impaimment EHE (474) (1.592) (6.767) (94) (8927)
87
Net carrying amount REFE 326 183 523 66 1,098
At 1 July 2006, net of T3 ELR
accumulated depreciation —B Bk
and impairment REHTERAE 326 183 523 66 1,098
Additions RE 85 116 471 125 197
Write of s - ®) (19 (69) o)
Depreciation provided FRiTE
during the year B (133) an (310) (20) (540)
Exchange realignment EH A% 6 8 24 - 38
At 30 June 2007, net of ZETHERA
accumulated depreciation =+H Bk
and impairment REHTERAE 284 227 689 102 1,302
At 30 June 2007: ERLE
~NA=tA:
Cost AR 922 1,860 1,231 107 10,126
Accumulated depreciation ZitE
and impaiment KA (638) (1,633) (6.548) 6) (8,824)
Net carrying amount REFE 284 227 689 102 1,302
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13.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - WE M&E @)
(Continued)
Group
AEH
Fumiture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures equipment Motor
improvements  and equipment and software vehicles Total
ih B
REXE RERRME R b CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT TAT TET TATL
30 June 2006 ZEERE
AA=TH
At 1 July 2005: “2TRE
tA-R:
Cost P E 833 2,320 12,063 157 15373
Accumulated depreciation 25HhE
88 and impaiment RRE (406) (2,063) (11.48) (61 (14011
Net carrying amount REE 427 257 582 9% 1,362
At 1 July 2005, net of —ZTRE
accumulated depreciation tA-R'B
and impairment MR EEHE 427 257 582 9 1,362
Additions RE 31 27 241 - 299
Wiite off fise ® ) - - (15)
Depreciation provided FRTE
during the year B (124) (98) (308) (32) (562)
Exchange realignment ERAR - 4 8 2 14
At 30 June 2006, net of S
accumulated depreciation =tH Bk
and impairment FERAE 326 183 523 66 1,098
At 30 June 2006; ZITAF
~AZTA:
Cost A 800 1.775 7.290 160 10,025
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
and impaimment RAfE (474) (1,592) (6.767) (94) (8927)

Net carrying amount BHFE 32 183 523 66 1,098
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RB LRI ZER

Company
RAF]
2007 2006
—ZTtHE ZTTRF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx T

Unlisted shares, at cost E LR + RAA 45,459 45,459
Impairment BB R (45.459) (45,459)
Investment in subsidiaries WEARZEE - =
Due from subsidiaries FEUPT I A RIFIE 88,745 89,256
Impairment of amounts due FEUPT I A RIFIE

from subsidiaries BB R (88,745) (89.256)
Due from subsidiaries, net of FEUHT B A RIRE

impairment provision BRI B - =
Due fo a subsidiary e — M A R FRIE (748) (538)

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

MEBARGHRSEER 28 NERETE
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14.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Parficulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

=L

ePRO (BVI) Limited

EPRO Computer Sysfems
(Beijing) Company Limited
(notes a & b)

SEEMAROLRARAR
(ffiakb)

EPRO Systems (China) Limited
HEZH (TE) BRAA

EPRO Systems (HK) Limited
58%%5 (BE) BRAR

EPRO Systems Limited
SEZRAERAR

Place of
incorporation
registration and
operations

SRR S R
RERR I

British Virgin Islands
EBRZFS

PRC
HE R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bk

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid share
capital/registered
share capital
BERTR
HBEBRAE

o i B A
ZHEE

Nil
it

US$700,000
700,000 7T

HK$925,000
925,000/ 7T

HK$100,000
100,000 7T

Ordinary HK$2;
Non-voting
deferred
HK$15,099,769
2BTERR ;
15,099,769% 7T
BERFEETR

14.

RHEB AR 2R )
FTEMBRARZFHBAT :
Percentage
of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company Principal activities
HARARFE
ZB BT
B
EXFDL FTEER
Direct Indirect
HiE [SiEES
100 - Investment holding
REER
- 100 Provision of professional
[T contract services
REZEEA
R a O R

Investment holding
and provision of
professional T
confract services
REZRRRHEE
BB AR

Investment holding
and provision of
professional IT
contract services
REZBRREHEE
BB A QRS

Investment holding
and provision of
management services
REERR

REEE RS
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14. AMB AR 2= #)

Nominal value Percentage

Place of of issued and of issued

incorporation  fully paid share capital/registered

registration/and capital/registered capital held
Name operations share capita by the Company Principal activities

BEBITR HARARFE

BEBE 2B BT

MR MR EERYE B fR
=L REXEK I ZEE EXEDH FEEK

Direct Indirect

B iEE2
EPRO Systems (S) Pte. Limited Singapore $$400,000 = 90 Provision of professional
(note b) (Mi&Fb) R 400,000 IT contract services
KT REZEEA
R & KRS
EPRO Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 = 100 Provision of professional
SEMBRERAT &% 1,000,000% 7T IT contract services
REZEREM
B a0 R
Shanghai EPRO Software PRC US$200,000 - 90 Provision of professional
Company Limited (notes b & ¢) HER 200,000%7T IT contract services
LERSEEMHERAF REERER
(FizEb & c) REEroliy
H7RePROMH &1t Japan ¥8,100,000 - 100 Not yet commenced
(note b) (fit&Fb) HZA  8,100,0008 T business
mAEE

Notes: B 5 -
(@) This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign owned (@) ZEWE A R TIRE A BEE R M AN
enferprise under the PRC law. FBEERE -
(b) Not audited by Cachet Certified Public Accountants (b) WHHERGEAMEEMAERRARE
Limited. % e

©) This subsidiary is registered as a foreign investment ©) Uk B A RIAR B BUE R B R RINGIR

enterprise under the PRC law.

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

DMEEEFE

Ao

15. REFERB 2 e

Group

M
2007 2006
—EEBLHF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
- 37
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15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following tfable illustrates the summarized financial
information of the Group’s associates extracted from their
management accounts/financial statements:

Assets BE
Liabilities =k
Revenues e

Profit/(Loss) for the year REZRF, (EE)

Partficulars of the principal associates are as follows:

15.

Place of

incorporation/

Business registration

Name structure  and operations
TR

EUPES

L ES 2 ES )]
Eprosonic Solutions Limited Corporate Hong Kong
(nofe a) (FffzEa) N BB
ePROgjistics Limited Corporate Hong Kong
HEMRHRBRAR N BE
elradeGo Limited Corporate British Virgin
N Islands

RBRAHE

2GoTrade Limited Corporate Hong Kong
SEMEERAT N BE

The Group’s interests in the associates are indirectly held
through wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Group is entitled fo
the same percentage of voting power and profit sharing
as denoted in the ownership percentage.

Noftes:

(a) Eprosonic Solutions Limited was deregistered in February
2007.

REE AT 2 EH2)

TR B AR E 2 B N B 2 TS B R
ERAHEEERE MHB®REK

2007 2006

—EETLHF ZETRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

4,396 6,294
(5.374) (9.840)

15,644 28,330
763 (96)

TEBERRZFHBRHINLT

Percentage of

ownership
inferest attributable
to the Group Principal activities
REBfLE
REEZEAL TEEK
2007 2006
ZRRLE  CTTAR
- 38 Provision of professional
[T contract services
REFXAR
BHRE DR
30 30  Provision of logistic IT
confract services
REMREAR
B & KRS
30 30 Investment holding
RAER
30 30 Provision of

application services

provider services

REEREA RS

R e 7 PR 75

REBRBERR RSN BEEWE

ARAERE AEEHEER—BILLZ
RERNINEFER DL RES R

G

(@) Eprosonic Solutions Limitedi? ==
TAF - A KREHEM -
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16. INVENTORIES 16. #&
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—ZETLHF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
Contract work in progress ETRZEHIRE 106 628
Merchandise for sale FriHmE 102 237
208 865
Contract work in progress: ETRZEHTRE
Confract costs incurred plus B RIPTEE £ & KIB AR
recognised profits less MBERRBFRE
recognised losses to date HRIEE 106 666
Less: Progress billings B RER R - (38)
o 93
Gross amount due from BRERNER
contract customers IR 106 628

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

An aged analysis of frade and bills receivables as at the
balance sheet date, based on due date, is as follows:

Current to 3 months
4 to 6 months

7 to 9 months

10 to 12 months
Over 1 year

Less: Impairment allowance
on trade and bills
receivables

BNERZ 3{E A
4% 6fE A
7Z9(EA
10£1218 A
—FLAE

B EWE SRR
SRREER

17. BREZRIAKREE

FEUWE 5 R LR BN EE B RS 3

HEt 2 BRI DITIAT -

Group

AEE
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
12,285 8.386
1,214 2,746
1,001 2,294
581 484
5,194 7,508
20,275 21,418
(6.135) (7.174)
14,140 14,244
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17.

18.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The credit terms given to the customers vary, and are
generally around three months and granted based on the
financial strength of the individual customers. In order to
effectively manage the credit risks associated with trade
debtors, credit evaluations of customers are performed
periodically by management.

17.

BREZRFAREZEE#)

BRTREPZEERSEIR —ROK=
BA YRENEFPZHBENMGET -
RAEBEREREESRFEHZEER
% BEEBERETEFP ZEENM -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18. BERBSEMEEBEARE
PLEDGED DEPOSITS R
Group Company
AEE NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF  ZTTRF ZEEEFE T RF
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT T FET FHIT
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITHER 8,934 6,615 165 59
Time deposits & HATE 3K 15,720 20,705 12,256 11,994
24,654 27,320 12,421 12,053
Less: Pledged time deposits  Jl : AEEGLIRTT
for securing banking A MRz
facilities (nofe 20) EETF R
(K$3E20) (15.419) (15,724) (12.256) (11.994)
Cash and cash equivalents Re MREFEER 9,235 11,596 165 59

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted
fo approximately HK$1,828,000 (2006: approximately
HK$2,078,000). The RMB is not freely convertible info other
currencies. However, under PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

REER  REBAARBREM 2 RS
RERITH#RR#1,828,0008 L (=2 TR
% :2,078,0007T) - ARK TR B
HEBRREMINE - AW - REBEAMHE
SVEE IR GRHINEE  SERMNMEEER
o AEEEERBEREETINERS
ZIRTHARE LR EAINE o
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19. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 19. ENEZRARERE
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables as at the ERESERREBRENEE B 5 BRMN K
balance sheet date, based on payment due date, is as EHEE ZBREE D TAT ¢
follows:
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EETLHF ZEERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current to 3 months 3EARN 5,943 3,185
4 to 6 months 4Z6(ER 743 384
7 to 12 months 7Z212{8AH 217 208
Over 1 year —FPAE 1,089 1,111
7,992 4,888
e b g s o 95
20. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 20. FTERITREMER
BORROWINGS
Group
rEE
Effective interest rate (%)  Maturity 2007 2006
BRAE (%) A —EZLF ZEERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank loans and overdrafts, Hong Kong dollar prime
- secured rate ("P") +1.5% fo P-1.0% On demand 114 23
RITEZ — FHEA BT BB A RER
+1.5%,-1.0%
Loan from a director Hong Kong dollar
- unsecured prime lending rate On demand 1.169 7,169
—HREEEN - EIEH 75 T AR 1B B AR R RERK
1,283 7,192
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20. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Analysed into: DR
Bank loans and overdrafts AR T I EAREE
repayable: RITERREX
Within one year or —FARIEE K
on demand

Loan from a director repayable: B N7 HAREEE
Z—REBEER
Within one year: —FR

96

The bank and other borrowings of the Group bear interest
at floating inferest rates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings approximate fo their fair values, estimated at the
present value of future cash flows, discounted at prevailing
interest rates at 30 June 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Notes:

(a) The banking facilities of the Group are secured by:

(i) corporate guarantees amounting fo an aggregate
of HK$28,300,000 executed by the Company (2006:
HK$28,300,000); and

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting fo HK$15,419,000 (2006: HK$15,724,000).

(b) The loan from a director is unsecured, bears inferest as
Hong Kong dollar prime rate per annum, and is repayable
on demand.

20. ;T ERITREMER 2

Group

TEE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EBERF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
114 23
1,169 7,169
1,283 7,192

A& B 2 3RAT R B A S SR IF B A KRG

B o
/T

$%@ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%ﬁ2%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ&$
AR « BT RE MR 2 A FEDRE
Kﬁéxﬂi%%lﬁﬁz— TTELFER_TTN
EAAZ+AZRTHENR 2 RES
5 o

[

GEX

(a) REBZRITRME AT ERERE
#

0) ANARIFEE 4271 /528,300,000
7T (ZZZR4F ¢ 28,300,000/
JT) ZREHER

(i) REBERERZE T KIS
15,419,000 7T (=TT /N4 ¢
15,724,000/ 7T) °

(©) —REFE R FORAEEA B TTR
BEEAREBHEZ MR REE TR
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21.

DEFERRED TAX

The principal components of the Group’s deferred fax
assets not recognised for, calculated at deferred tax rates
in Hong Kong, Singapore, the PRC and Japan of 17.5%
(2006: 17.5%), 18% (2006: 22%), 7.5% (2006: 7.5%) and
22% (2006: NA) respectively, on the cumulative temporary
differences at the balance sheet date, are as follows:

Tax losses s 1E
Accelerated depreciation iR E
allowances R

At the balance sheet datfe, the Group had tax losses arising
in Hong Kong, Singapore and Japan of approximately
HK$88,020,000 (2006: HK$86,556,000), that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.The Group's fax losses
arising in the PRC that are available for offsetting against
the following five years’ faxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose are approximately HK$2,599,000
(2006: HK$2,739,000). Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some fime.

As 30 June 2007, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2006: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable onthe unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's
subsidiaries or associates as the Group has no liability fo
additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

21.

IEIEB R

BRRNEEBZ R BRREZE - REFE
s PEREBARZBELEREDRIR
17.5%(ZFTRF : 17.5%) ~ 18%(=F
TRF:22%) » 7.5%( BT RF:7.5%)
K22% (—ZZRFE: AER)  ;FEAR

SERBRAZEEHBEEEZ EEXH N
T

Group
rEE

2007 2006

—EELHF —EEREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

15,584 15,409

40 50

15,624 15,459

REER  AEBEREE  HMEEAR
EER B EE S 51488,020,000/% T (=
T T N4 : 86,556,000 7T ) A A R 4K 58
AR BEZERBEN - ARENFEE
SR AREHEZE R AERAFRRY G
Mz B E R4 52,5699,0008 T(—FF
7NEF 2,739,000 7T) - AR A EEE R
BEES —BRERZMBAR - ML EHR
I e R SE R IR B EE A AT RERR

RZZETLFANA=+H AEEWEE
e iR MNCIES: =N e ) s P
JE 2 TRIA M A MBI B
REBEEEI |EKRNE B2 RERBELER
HAB(ZZEZERF &) -

97
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22.

98

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
as at 1 July 2005
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each:
Effect of increase in nominal
value of ordinary shares from EMEFKR0.10%8T
HK$0.01 each to HK$0.10 each 2B

0.01BTTZ BBR
FIREEO.10E T 2 &Rk

As at 30 June 2006 and 2007

ERTRMR

W=FTRFLA-AZ
SRAE0OVET Y HER
SIRMIED. 0BT HER

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each
as at 1 July 2005
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each:
Effect of increase in nominal
value of ordinary shares from EME8KR0.10%8 T
HK$0.01 each to HK$0.10 each b7
Issue of shares pursuant to AR
a rights issue EIRE

As at 30 June 2006 and 2007

Pursuantto anordinaryresolution passed atan extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 30 December
2005, every ten issued and unissued shares of HKS0.01
each were consolidated into one new share of HK$S0.10
("Consolidated Shares”) with effect from 30 December
2005. Following the share consolidation exercise becoming
effective on 30 December 2005, the authorised share
capital of the Company was HK$1,000,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each, of which
160,080,000 ordinary shares were in issued and fully paid.
The ordinary shares after the share consolidation rank pari
passu in all respects with each other.

REZZEZRF+A—-AZEREE

ERERROEEEER0.01ET

RIBERER-ZZLFA=TH

AR EEEER0.0178T

R=FEAFR-FELAAA=TA

22. A

Number of Shares Nominal Value

BREE HfE

THT

100,000,000,000 1,000,000
(90,000,000,000) -
10,000,000,000 1,000,000
1,600,800,000 16,008

(1,440,720,000) -

80,040,000 8,004

240,120,000 24,012

REBEEARAR_ZZEAF+-_A=+
BROZBRREI RS LEB 2 EBR
FE BTREREECOETZEH
TRARBETROAH R - SREEI0
BLzHBR(HER]) B -FTAF+
“H=tTHRBEH REROAHR-ZF
TRAFET_A=ZTHEREK  ARAZ
% 17 AR X 21,000,000,000% 7t © 5 &
10,000,000,000/% & A% H {£0.10/% 7T 2
Em ARty - HH160,080,0004% % 5@ ik
BIOREETERER - RERNDAHERZE
BB RIERAE T HZE RS
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22.

23.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A rights issue of one ordinary share (*Offer Share™) for every
two Consolidated Shares held by members on the register
of the Company on 30 December 2005 was made, at an
issued price of HK$0.13 per Offer Share, resulting in the issue
of 80,040,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$10,405,200 for
general working capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the
share options issued under the schemes are as follows:

@

Pre-IPO share option plan

In recognizing the contribution of certain directors
of the Company to the growth of the Group and/or
the listing of the shares of the Company on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange, the shareholders adopted
a Pre-IPO share option plan (the "Pre-IPO Plan”) on
24 July 2000. Pursuant fo the terms of the Pre-IPO
Plan, 25,725,752 options o subscribe for shares of
the Company were granted to three directors on
26 July 2000, at an exercise price of HKS0.70, with
a vesting period of six months from 2 August 2000.
The opftions are exercisable from 2 February 2001
until 23 July 2010. However, each of the grantees is
not allowed to exercise in aggregate in exceed of
25% of all the options granted within any six-month
period. The Pre-IPO Plan expired on 2 August 2000,
but the granted options remain exercisable.

The following share options were outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Plan during the year:

Number of share options

BRESR

Name or Lapsed
category of At 1 July during At 30 June
participant 2006 the year 2007

RIBERE RBEtE
SRELRRAERA tA-B  AEEAR  RAZtE
Direcfors
EZ
Mr.Yip Sam Lo 1,986,367 - 1,986,367 2
EoREE

22, BRA& ()

R_ZEERF+_A=+HEZINARA
B A2 RS A W AR R A
—BERR(TEHER])  REREER
013B L 2 E/TEETHKR - B #1T
80,040,0000% & & 1 fE0.10/8 Tt 2 & &
BR A% 17 X /5 4838 © K {810,405, 20075 7T
(RIBHAIIER—REBEESHE °

BlmEsta

ARBIERESE RRBZ SR ERTZ
BREFEBOT

(Q) ER 7 BE IR AT RS AR AR

ARTASEETESSALEESE
NERER RS ARAB DG ATE
BEXFTEIZER EAEZ BERL - &
R-EETFEL A -+ NEERE
RARBRATEREEI( & X
AABBRAEE] - BREFHAA
ABRAIGT B Z &R - NAFER
—EEEELA -+ RNEAZME
EREAIREARRQRIRG 2 BRRE
25,725,7521p » 17 {8 £0.70%
T REHB-_TETEN\A-A
BEANEA - BRELR-ZZT—F
—AZHREZZ—ZTFLtA=+
= HIERTBATTE - AT - SEEA
TEREMNSEARITES LER
B EEREIAE2E% 2 BEIHE - B
RAFABRAGER=_ZZZTFEN
RZ—HEIH - EEE T 2 BIRED
Al AT o

23.

VAN BANE E AR &R AR AT
SRR R ETT 2 B AR

Exercisable period  Data of grant of  Exercise price of

of share options share options#  share options##

BREZOTES RUBREAH: BREZGEEH

HKS

BT

February 2001 fo 23 July 2010 26 July 2000 557
S S = —TTTE
“Z-TFtA=1=AH R P =

99
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

No opftions were exercised under the Pre-IPO Plan
during the year.

# The vesting period of the share options is from
the datfe of grant until the commencement
of the exercise period.

H## The exercise price of the share options is
subject to adjustment in the case of rights
or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

As a result of the fen-fo-one share consolidation
exercise (nofe 22) and the one-fortwo rights issue
on 30 December 2005 (note 22), the exercise
price of the aforesaid outstanding share options
was adjusted from HK$0.557 to HK$5.57 and the
number of share opfions outstanding adjusted
from 19,863,670 to 1,986,367 in accordance with
the terms of the Pre-IPO Plan.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
1,986,367 outstanding share options under the
Pre-lPO Plan, which represented approximately
0.82% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 1,986,367
additional new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each,
with aggregate proceeds before related issue
expenses of approximately HKS11,064,000.

Share option scheme

On 12 February 2007, the Company terminated the
share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 24 July 2000 (the "Old Share Option Scheme”)
and adopted a new share option scheme of the
Company (the "New Share Option Scheme”) in
compliance with the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rule.

23. IBRESTE (2

(b)

FR - LEBRERESRARR
P AR 8 F LATTE o

# BREZFBEAZSAR D
BHM=TTRBRABA/LE

##  BERBZITERETRFH

BB TAIE - HARA
BRA 2 K A2 T A
FHE -

ERg+Rattn—RE&RO&HT
B(WMF22) RR=ZZEZTRF+ =
A=tBEUREBREAMEKREE K
HATHR (I F22) + E il m R 1T
R E 2 TRED 00.5578 T
HEES57ETAEREERAR
A A 5t B 2 6 SR 1 R 1T (R BB A
28 B R19,.863,670EE
1,986,367 °

RNEER - ARRREERRMARA
M AT ET 8175 1,986,367 17 i# R 1T
BRE  HERARRRNE H#ET
ZBi4n #90.82% o RIEA R R E
BARE » BBITERERTTEBER
A B3 171,986,367 K B AR
{B0.10/8 T 2 BINT ESBAR D
PSR EABR(MBRAEEETRX
AI)4911,064,000% 7T ©

fBRRERT &

RZZZHLF-_HA+=-H  ARQF
RIEER-_ZZTF+A—+WH
BRAA O BB A M AT &I ([ B B A A &t
B ) 0 R Ak R R 8 ([ T AR
RERTEL) - ZHA BT ARIER L
MARAZRTE e
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)
Old Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Old Share Option
Scheme on 24 July 2000 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
As the Old Share Option Scheme has been
ferminated on 12 February 2007, no more opfion
can be issued pursuant fo the Old Share Option
Scheme.

No options were granted/exercised/lapsed under
the Old Share Opfion Scheme during the year
ended 30 June 2007. As at 30 June 2007, there
were no options outstanding under the Old Share
Option Scheme.

New Share Option Scheme

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on
12 February 2007, adopted the New Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants for their contribution
fo the Group and/or fo enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable fo the Group
and any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”). Eligible participants of
the New Share Option Scheme include the directors
and employees of the Company, its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity, suppliers and customers
of the Group or any Invested Entity, any person
or entity that provides research, development or
technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entfity, any adviser or consultant fo any area of
business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity, any joint venture
partner or business alliance that co-operates with
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
in any area of business operation or development
and any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity. The New Share Option Scheme should, unless
otherwise terminated or amended, remain in force
for ten years from 12 February 2007.

23. BRESTE ()
(b) BRESE (2
EERIEZ

ARRIR=ZEEFLA=+MA
FWEEREE  BEREHA
SERNEE 2 EBIEL TR ZE
BR2HEEGTREKER - AR
EBREFEHER_ZTLE_A
+ZBRIE  BTSRIZEBRE
FTBIB AT REARAE -

BHE_ZTTHFRNA=THIF

ERETE KR RZEEL
FRNA=1TH EBKREFEET
I A AT i AR 1T 0 B A o

B AT &

ARARBRBR -_ZZLF A+
B BB 2 R 5 R A BB R AT
2 BESEREBHAEEEL
BERfZEER2EER LRI A
B MR R R B S I A
AEERASESATAREZE
BIREEBDBAEAEEZA
NER - FBRET B2 A EKRS
HEREALNF  HMBAQFHE
MREEBZEEZRER A5H
REMREERZHEREALES
fEfa] (R A 5 B S AR fR] R & B BB 4R fit
ok - MERRMEZALHE
B8 AEBEEMKR QR KE[E
BERZEBREBERZEMNE
Bz EES A - EAREE
RERFRERREERNES L
BRERZEMNBRBASEZEER
PRk R - U RAEBERK
BRRIREMIRE B2 EMARR
H A ANEEEAKE A A SREMR
BERBRTZENESZERNRFE
A o FTEBBER S - FRIES T UK
IFSkERT - K22 LF A+
“RE-EEM  BHTF -
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

23. BRESTE ()
(b) BRESE (2

102

New Share Optfion Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme, together with the options so granted
under the Pre-IPO Plan, is not permitted fo exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as af
12 February 2007, being the dafe of adoption of
the New Share Option Scheme, (i.e. not exceeding
24,012,000 shares of the Company).The Company
may seek approval of the shareholders in a general
meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the New
Share Option Scheme save that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company under the limit as “refreshed” shall
not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the refreshed
limit. Options previously granted under the New
Share Opftion Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance with
the Scheme and any other schemes) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculatfing the limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet fo be exercised under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time
fo time. The number of shares issued and fo be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted fo each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the date of grant. Each
grant of options to any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by
independent non-executive directors.

B EAT & (E)

R 4% 3 B AR 5T &I AT % T R AR A
(BRI B XA MBI AT T2 A7
BT 2HBRE) 2RMDBETEHE
EARARR =TT ELF_A+=H
FEBRETERABERTROZ
10% (BTN i@ A A |]24,012,000
BRRRD) o AR RIAIGEE BT
BERAERTE 2 10%BRBRRE RS
ESKIREHE - HERITERE
BE AR M AT 2 R AN A )] L b BE AR
WEFTEIFT IR T 2 2 20 B8 IR 4 T 42 R
R A T E1T 2 R D BB
TMESBEHN I EEHREABHE %
TR EEZ10% ° SCRTiRIE 3
AR P T B & AN A A ] E Ath 5T 8135
HzBRE(BEZZFRRITE
B - BERBSBEZ E RE
A HE AT BB 1T 2 BARE) 155t
FTEREMmMS TNETEER °

AR R 5t 8 R AN R R B
R B A B R IBEREST
B2 BREETERETZ&B K
MEE » TMEEBBARRTERE %
17 R 19 #2 81 230% A E A 121&
AER AR T 52 08EBRE
(BREETEIRRRITEERE)Z
BEEITIHTHITROME TFE
HARE G HBERABE HTH
D21%° AEMES - BFEAT
ERETERREHBRERERT
FERITERIAE o
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)
New Share Opfion Scheme (Continued)

Where any grant of opfions to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates would resultinthe shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already and to be granted in excess 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HKS$5 million must be approved in advance by
the Company’ shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options shall be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS$1 in fotal by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, save that such period shall not be more
than fen years from the date of the offer of the share
options subject to the provisions for early termination
set out in the New Share Option Scheme. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be
held before the exercise of the subscription right
attaching thereto except otherwise imposed by the
board of directors. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

No opfions were granted under the New Share
Option Scheme since its adoption date to 30 June
2007.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date 30 June
2007, a total of 5,040,000 share options were granted
fo a director of the Company and employees of the
Group under the New Share Option Scheme. At the
date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 5,040,000 share options oufstanding
under the New Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 1.5% of the Company’s
shares in issue as af that date.

23. BRESTE (2

(b) BRRESE (2)
FrEERRIESZ (&)
fHm EEZARE AR BB IERTT
BEENRESAZHEALIREE
iE @SB ERNBER ZER
HETEMETREETZARAT
B BB AR A KA Z20.1%k B
{B#8:85,000,000/8 T + A= %
S AR A IR -

BTEREZEZHENERBHE
28K NIEM W AARABMLA
HI1BT2Z2EZRE-- IR TER
H2ITHEHRRESETE  EIR
RETEREA T A RBIENR L
ZIEX - BRI EZREaET
BRERBES T4 - BRIERHE
EEEHAT  BRTEATERE
AP BT s 2 REB AT M AR FE
R REHR - TEEBIEAR
RIESET  BTIEENRAT=F
Z2EEE (VAR BKRGREH
ERA(WARLER)REIMEA
HRERMFZWTE (AR A
BRORBEREERAAELSER
REERFrE BIRERTHR 2 FHY%
HE  R(i)ADRRMD ZEME -

HIEREAIRREEE 2T
+HERNA=ZTH  WEBBFER
RERT &3 RS A -

RZEELFRNA=+HEHEH
& RENBEREAISAR TR
AREF KL EEE5,040,000
DB - RALEZEMBEREK A
B REFBERESS  AQF
55,040,00017 & RUHE i R AT B2
HERARRE BB ETRMHH
1.5% -
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24. RESERVES

@

(b)

The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presenfed in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 44 of this annual
report.

24. #E
(o) &*5H

ARERRE RBEFEL R
HBDRBHNAERIE 2 &
ARBDE -

The Company (b) A=F
Share premium Accumulated
account losses Total
IR A3 RE iR EX ] st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2005 RZZEERF
~NA=+H 24,094 (23,968) 126
Issue of shares BITHRE
(note 22) GEZY) 2,401 - 2,401
Share issue expenses  EE1T () % A (1,204) - (1,204)
Loss for the year REFEE - (14,239) (14,239)
At 30 June 2006 and R -EETAEAA=FH
1 July 2006 RZZFTXFLHA—H 25,291 (38.207) (12,916)
Profit for the year AEFEF - 263 263
At 30 June 2007 R-ZEZLFRA=1+H 25,291 (37.944) (12,653)

The share premium account of the Company
includes (i) premium arising from the new issue of
shares in the current and prior years nefted of share
issue expenses; and (ii) the difference between the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganization upon listing in
July 2000 over the nominal value of the share capital
of the Company issued in exchange ftherefore.

In accordance with the Companies Law (2000
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed fo be
distributed, the Company will be in a position fo
pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium
may also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

ARBZRGEERBE()AF
N B R EITHE L 2R EF
B BRI  R>BER -
ZETFELA L TRETCERS
AT ELHBARER 2GR
EFEEBITERRR Z AR EIR
AZHEZER -

BREREHEZARE(ZZEE
FERTAR) - WAR AR EREEIK
REZHE  ARBEIHRENEEER
HEEBEE  QIROEERA
HOERTARBE o BB IR
A ABRARIZA DK ©
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26.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases cerfain of ifs office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Such leases
are negotiated for the terms ranging from one to three
years.

At 30 June 2007, the Group had fotal future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

REHEN R
FEBRELERORHARETHAS

MERBIES - EHEZNEAESHN
F-E=F-

R-ZZFZLFNA=1H - RETAIHE
KLY REBERATFHAINMN 2R
RREEMNESEEMAT

>

Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EELE —ETERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT F&T
Within one year —FR 2,027 1,422
In the second fo fifth years, F_EFERF
inclusive (BEERME) 483 108 105
2,510 1,530

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) The Company had contingent liabilities in respect
of corporate guarantees for banking facilities
granted fo certain subsidiaries in the aggregate
amount of HK$28,300,000 (2006: HK$28,300,000). At
the balance sheet date, such facilities were utilised
by the subsidiaries fo the extent of the aggregate
amount of HK$2,906,000 (2006: HK$1,762,000).
No financial liabilities will record for the above
guarantee given fo bank as in the opinion of
directors, the fair value of financial guarantee
contract was not material.

(b) At 30 June 2007, the Group had executed
performance bonds of HKS$301,000 (2006:
HKS$877,000) in respect of certain services provided
by the Group.

26. HAEE

(a) $"ﬁ?¢t%3ﬂ9ﬁ%/‘ﬂ%ﬁtﬁdz
RITRMEEAHNERELZA
Vﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁfi\%@ﬁﬁk
28,300,000 st( = TT/\i
28,300,000/ 7T ) ° M=
W%@ﬂa@ﬂﬂu%%?ﬂ =
2,906,000/ jt( — T T H 4 :
1,762,000 L) - LEEE R
A ERERITIER Z ISR 2 A F
B REKX @ PFAANREER S
BEE -

(b) RZZTZTLFAA=1H  r&E
HAEERB 2 ETRBEREL
B #91R #301,000% ;t( =T T
% : 877,000/ T) °
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27. COMMITMENTS 27.

In addition fo the operating lease arrangement detailed in
note 25, the Group had the following capital commitments
at the balance sheet date:

Contracted but not yet HVA=F Ol EFR L
provided for
- Acquisition of a motor vehicle — Ui —ap A=
Authorised, but not contracted for B BRI 4I
- Equity capital contribution
fo a subsidiary (Note a)

Nofte:
(@) In respect of the equity capital contribution fo a 80%-
held subsidiary to be established in the People’s Republic
of China. The registration process for this entity had
commenced in March 2007.
28. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 28.

In September 2003, a subsidiary of the Group, Epro Systems
(China) Limited ("EPRO China”), and Linkfull Investment
Group Limited (‘Linkfull”) entered info an agreement
whereby EPRO China agreed fo sell and Linkfull agreed to
purchase 7,000 shares of HK$1 each (the “Sale Shares”)
in EPROgiistics Limited ("EPROgistics”) at the consideration
of HKS$1,750,000 (the “Consideration”), which was
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Mr. Wong
Tak ("Mr.Wong"), a then staff of the Group and a beneficial
owner of Linkfull.

The Consideration for the sale and purchase of the Sale
Shares shall be seftled in two franches as follows:

(@) as to HK$1 million, upon signing of the agreement
for sale and purchase dated 10 September 2003
(the "Agreement”);

—FABARDEAER (Firta)

Z%

BRETEE26m it Z B 2B - REER

HERBBUNUTEAREE :
Group
AEH
2007 2006
—EBLF b
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
- 108
1,027 -
1,027 108
B 5

(@)  FKBAAEARABERERT R
BESZNTEAZWBAT - AW
HERAMERER BT LEZ AR
e

EEFA

ZEZ=FNA AEE-—FRHE QA
SBERSB(RE)AR2A(ZEFRE])
KLinkfull Investment Group Limited
(TLinkfull DETSZ —fh % Bt - 58
FEREREMLINkUIREEE S EWR
BMEBRAB(SEYRE 1) 7,0004%
EREEIATZRO(TEERS ] - K
871,750,000 T ([R(E 1) » WEKRE
BER—2BE(NALnKfullzE=ES
A ) Wong Tak%t 4 ([Wong %t 4 |) & 5k 14
i 7 BT B i A AR o

BEHEBR D 2 RER DT XD M
A

(@) 1,000,000ETRETBHA=T
T=FNA+BEEB=RE(HZE]

1=
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28. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (continued) 28. EETHA )
(o)  as to HK$750,000, atf anytime thereafter but in any (b) 750 OOO?’éﬁﬁAﬁt?éﬁfEiiﬁﬁ o
event on or before 30 June 2005. WOAEAR—TTRAFASAA=T
EI ﬁZH\ °
The first franche of the HK$1,000,000 was received by SEFEER -_ZE=FNAT+HKRE
EPRO China on 10 September 2003 and pursuant to HA7 781,000,000/ 7T - RE B D B A
two supplemental deeds dated 30 August 2005 and 11 —ETRFENR=FTRHRZZETEF—A
January 2006 respectively, the due date for settlement of T—BHBZMDEREZLY  ZNEZHRIE
the second tranche was extended to 30 June 2006. ZBRHEEREZTEAFASAA=TH-
As at the balance sheet date, apart from further HK$37,000 REZER - RSEHRBEE KES 537,000
wasreceived by EPRO China, Linkfull failed/refused to pay the PETLAN » Linkfullk 88 1B 48 3 - 48 8 49
balance of the Consideration in the sum of approximately 713,000 Ttz REHFEEBEFE -
HK$713,000 together with the interest thereon.
Despite of repeated extension and in view of the default BEEZ }XLHH ER RN K
in payment, EPRO China filed a claim against Mr. Wong FER-_ZEZFNANH )\ﬁ-%f/ﬁ fH
on 8 August 2006 to the District Court of the Hong Kong AMITHERREER  AEREREBEE
Special Administrative Region in respect of the outstanding 713,000 L ERB=TETHF LA —H 107
balance of the Consideration of approximately HK$713,000 ZEREHIEZFEAWongst £ H
together with the interest from 1 July 2005 fill payment. = o
Notwithstanding the confidence of the directors of the ED FEARQNGEEMEEIERE R E a5k
Company on successful claim of the said amount, a full CMEMREBE_ZEEEFEAAA=TAHLE
provision for the receivable of the outstanding principal ¢E2$% By ERERP TR E 2 KRE
amount of HK$713,000 had been made in the financial B4 E713,000/8 TIER H A -
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2007.
29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 29. ZKEBREMNERKMTE

FLOW STATEMENT
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary

On 6 December 2004, the directors” meeting of the EPRO
Computer Systems (Shanghai) Company Limited (the
"EPRO Shanghai”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, which the deregistrafion was commenced on
14 September 2005 and completed this procedure on 30
July 2007. EPRO Shanghai was principally engaged in the
provision of professional IT contract services. Since the
relevant business licenses had expired and the board of
directors had resolved not to provide any future resources
for its operation, EPRO Shanghai was de-consolidated from
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2006.

HERLEHNE LT

RZZFEZTWNF+=-_A A ZELEZE
EEEFHEIELE - FELIRAR
A2 EBMENBAR - FHER=_FTTH
FNATHBRBARR-_ZZLF LA
ETHREEHEEF c SEELEBETENRSE
REEAR RS ORY - BEEEZHR
EERTEEEERZRRARIAG REERE
REEMER - HB LB TEHRAR
SEEEZE_TTEFAA=ZTHIEFEZ
A MBHmE -



/)

|EPRO Lim

i ted

Notes to Financial Statements B f&3R R Mis:

Year ended 30 June 2007 EZ=—ZZtHFRA=+HIFE

108

29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 29.

RERTREBHRERME

FLOW STATEMENT (Continued) (&)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (Confinued) BHEAHEWB AT (&)
Group
TEE
2006
ZEERF
HK$'000
FHT
Net assets disposed of: HEUTEBEZFEE
Trade payables FERTE SRR (329)
Other payables and accruals Hip e FIEREAEE (533)
(862)
Reserves released upon AR A & 2 TR e
deemed disposal 22
Gain on deemed disposal of WRADE—MHE
a subsidiary eIl € 840
Satisfied by Cash WEFTfT -

The deemed disposed subsidiary did not contribute fo the
Group's revenue (2006: Nil) or to the Group’s consolidated
profit after tax (2006: loss of HK$58,000) for the year ended
30 June 2007.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition fo the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with an associate and a director
during the year:

Interest received from an associote 24 —fEHEE A 7] 2 F.8
Interest paid fo a director XNF—REEZHE
Sales to an associate M E AR 2 HERE
Loan from a director, unsecured —HREFER - ERA

Notes:

(a) Interest was charged at Hong Kong dollar prime lending
rate per annum.

WRBIEHENBARLERANERE 2 W
HHREBM(ZZZRE &) TER/A
SERE_TTLHFEAA=THLEFEZ
RERBRAMNBEREM(ZEENE
[E51858,000/%5 7T ) °

30. BEAERE

MRt F B IS R P Rrall 2 X 5 M s R AN
RAFE  REBHEBERAN - RES

EITUTRS :
Group
AEH
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
FffaE FET FET
(@ - 8
(@) 138 515
- 71
1,169 7,169
Bt 5 -
(@) MERBTHREBEMNEFRFH -
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise overdrafts, and cash and short ferm
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is fo raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
frade receivables and frade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

It is, and has been during the year, the Group’s policy that
no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.The board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarized
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relafion to
derivatives are set out in 2.4 fo the financial statements.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily fo the Group’s bank loan and
overdraft and a loan from a director at market prevailing
floating interest rate.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management monitors the Group’s interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rafe exposure should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has fransactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating unifs
in currencies ofher than the unit's functional currency.

The Group requires all its operating units fo use forward
currency contracts to use forward currency contracts fo
eliminate the foreign currency exposures for currencies
other than United States dollars and on any individual
transactions in excess of HK$500,000 or equivalent, for
which payment is anticipated more than one month after
the Group has entered info a firm commitment for a sale
or purchase.The forward currency confracts must be in the
same currency as the hedged item. It is the Group’s policy
not fo enfer info forward contracts until a firm commitment
is in place.

1. BBEREERREREEEK

BOTETAEN  AEBZIEZPKTAER
BIRITER B RAEREHER - %
SUBTACEIZENERRAEEHZE
BEE ASEEZHERAREEL Y
HUPBEERAR @ fINE 5 EUWRIA
RE B ENFIA -

AEBZERRERNFEALBEENB T
H o

AEEMBTRELAZTZRARASREER
EfXERE  NERR  FERRERE
BBk EFERMALAEEEZSRA
BRI ELAINT - REBERITETA
ZEBEBRRBRPBHRME2.4 -

REREFNRMEME

AEBEETRPREFHNX 2 ERKER
AR —BERREM SN R B EERER
ElEE AR R o e i

7R & 3R I 3 MR AN A R R - R
- EREREEENRER IREFR
ERHEBEINERFIEER

e L B

AEEEERZEERR - ZERBR A
RISE B AT RE B W IAIN 2 G HE 1T 84
ERRBMEL -

AEBEREMBREEN BBEA
500,000 Tk AE AL R E—E A
NENRZBRNRZZRAEER LEE R
BEARERERENERSH  AEHEEM
ETAINEE ZIMNERR - EHEESL
WVABRPFEHIER 2 E¥AER - AEHZ
BERBMESHEEAHAMNM T LERS
4] o
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

It is the Group's policy fo negotiate the terms of the hedge
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item fo
maximise hedge effectiveness.

The Group had no foreign currency confracts outstanding
as 30 June 2007.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish fo trade on credit ferms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions
that are not denominated in the functional currency of
the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the management.

The credit risk of the Group'’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and available-for-
sale financial assets, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

Liquidity risk

Infernally generated cash flow and bank borrowings are
the general sources of funds fo finance the operations of
the Group. The majority of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject fo floating rates and are renewable annually.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure that it has adequate financial resources to meet
its financial obligations. The Group aims fo maintain
flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit
lines and sufficient bank deposits fo meet its short term
cash requirements. The Group’s liquidity risk management
includes making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources.

1. BHEREERRERECEK

(#)

SMEE R BR (#)
AEBEZBRABELHITETREZ K
R AEEAEIPIER Z G EMRE&
= EPAR -

RZBELFAA=TA - EAKEMNI
BAK o
Eh3:

AEEEECEARGEBELF=ZTX
7 AEEZBRRMAHRAEEHR S
ZEP MARBBRBEENGRERF I
S BHRUGRIRERIAFEEE T NE
7 MARE 2 ERY AERE - g IEN
HEAEEEN 2R ERIEZRZRSM
FOARBEREEEHEATEREEE
H o

AEEHRHFEOMELER MR BEE
(BRAEACFEY R A HHEHG
EEIZGFEERBRRSEZETAZER
BEHER -

HRAEEEREHANEEBEEZE
RS - WA R ZHRE

MENE & B b2

AHEEZRERERRITEERAEER
EBED 2 —RKR - REBATMDHRT
MERFPNEABARTFES - A%
SR ETEEENRN  UBRER R
WU BERARNEMBEEME - AEEE
EERERTIHIAZCABEER A
HFETcERE  YABRMZRTRE
R UNEBNERREFE - AEREZRY
MRREESRTHREERRTRER
DHEERR -
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32. SIGNIFICANT POST BALANCE SHEET
EVENTS

33.

(@

)

©

On 4 July 2007, the Company issued a tofal of
96,048,000 shares pursuant fo a placing agreement
dated 31 May 2007 entered info between the
Company and an independent placing agent at a
placing price of HKS0.16 per share.The net proceeds
of the placing of approximately HK$14.4 million
were used for the Group’s business operation as fo
(i) approximately HK$4.0 million for establishing a
research and development centre in the PRC; (ii)
approximately HK$1.0 million for setting up an office
in Japan; and (i) approximately HK$9.4 million for
general working capital;

On 16 July 2007, a total of 4,320,000 share options
were granted to a director of the Company and
employees of the Group at an exercise price
HK$0.43 per share option with expiry dates from 8
July 2012 fo 8 July 2017; and

On 19 July 2007, a total of 720,000 share options
were granted to employees of the Group at an
exercise price HK$0.43 per share option with expiry
dates from 8 July 2010 to 8 July 2012.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant subsequent
events fook place subsequent fo 30 June 2007.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 13 September 2007.

32. FEHKREHE

(@) R-ZTT+&E+AmA - AAFR
AN A T B — I8 S BT AR R T 3T
TRERS  REEEER0.165
Tt Bl & A 1£96,048,0000% & A 7]
R - B EIE 2 18RI FEN
/14,400,000 T AR AR E
B 3 75 4 583264 (1) 494,000,0007%
TRREFBRIFHES L (i)
#71,000,000% 7& I R 1E B AR 7
WERE - R (iii)499,400,000/% 7T
RE—REEES -

(b) RZZEZLFLtA+H &#
4,320,0001p BB IR #ER T AR R —
NEERALEEES REHER
#0.43%8 T 2 1TEETE - BIEE
RZE——FtANBE=ZZT—+
F+ANA -

(c) R-ZTL&+A+hE A%
720,000 8 % 1 % F & &% @ &
B RS HERIEC. AT 2178

BB A-E—TELA

NBE-E——F+AN\A -

B XA AEBE L -F T+
FAAZHAYMANEALEARS
1 -

33. HL/EMB®RKR

EFZeEA_ZZLFAAT=ZA#ER
REBTHBEHRE
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

RESULTS
REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling and distribution costs
Technical expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of:

Associates

A jointly-controlled enterprise

PROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Aftributable fo:
Equity shareholders of
the Company
Minority inferests

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
MINORITY INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MINORITY INTERESTS

TYXRAEEROABAMBRERE 2 REREE
EERIVBERESEHE  DRSEEAKEZE
WiKEEEY,EHD

R BRI RE

3 e

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEE

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—EBELF —TTRE —TTHFE —TITNF —TT=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FAT FAT FHT FHT
£
WA 61,538 86,478 54,822 85,148 126,494
& miH SRR (31,717) (62,623) (33,562) (54,664) (78.,472)
EFI 29,821 23,855 21,260 30,484 48,022
H At A R ek 2,207 2,298 6,763 2,698 9,485,
SHE KD S (1,118) (949) (906) (1,423) (2.591)
& (10,207) (9.4006) (11,489) (14,305) (22.892)
T E (19.705) (19,983) (19,543) (27.386) (31,201)
H fth 2 - - a9) 484 1,965
BB KA (157) (798) (952) (1,037) (1,237)
AMETHIRFIZ
BRI RS
UNE] @ (83) 534 163 (138)
— Rl EEAR
SERA - - - - 3,779
BrBiAI 2R (F5E) 834 (5.066) (4.352) (10,322) 5.192,
B () (345) (45) (180) (2,044)
FEEFH, (BE) 825 (5.417) (4,397) (10,502) 3,148
VAT &7 A
RN S
825 (5.411) (4.397) (10,750) 3,290
DHRR - - - 248 (142)
825 (5.417) (4,397) (10,502) 3,148
BE - B8ERIH
IRER
BELEE 43,504 45,017 58,503 61,726 89,878
B &R (32,432) (33,634) (50,590) (49,120) (70,745)
D ER R R - - - (248) -
11,072 11,383 7.913 12,358 19,133
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